WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
ORGANIZATIONAL/ORIENTATION MEETING AGENDA

TUESDAY, APRIL 19, 2022

There will be an Organizational/Orientation Meeting of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors on
Tuesday, April 19, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. in the Supervisors’ Room, Fourth Floor, Winnebago County Courthouse,
415 Jackson Street, Oshkosh, Wisconsin. At this meeting, the following will be presented to the Board for its

consideration:

Orientation Session:

Call to order & roll call — Sue Ertmer, County Clerk

Pledge of Allegiance

Invocation — Supervisor Karen Powers

Welcome — Jon Doemel, County Executive

Board of Supervisors' Oath of Office - Judge Barbara Key

Public Hearing

Election of County Board Chairman

Election of County Board Vice Chairman

Appointment of Committee on Committees by County Board Chairman

e Explanation of County Board Room Voting System — County Board Chairman

e Explanation of the functions of the Corporation Counsel’s Office and the Winnebago County
Board of Supervisors’ Ethics Handbook — Mary Anne Mueller, Corporation Counsel

e Personnel/Payroll Information — Mark Habeck, Acting Human Resources Director

e iPads and Supervisors’ E-mail Account Information — Information Systems Department

RESOLUTION NO. 01-042022:

RESOLUTION NO. 02-042022:

RESOLUTION NO. 03-042022:

RESOLUTION NO. 04-042022:

RESOLUTION NO. 05-042022:

RESOLUTIONS

Amend Section 18.0 (General Duties of the County Board) of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding
Sections 18.7 and 18.8

Submitted by:

MIKE NORTON, District 20

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 22.0 (Committee Meetings) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Section 22.18
Submitted by:
MICHAEL NORTON, District 20
Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Limit Consecutive Terms for the Winnebago County Board Supervisors
to Serve on Winnebago County Committees

Submitted by:

BRIAN DEFFERDING, District 6

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 1.1 (Time and Meeting Place) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 2.0 (Orientation Meeting) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Section 2.6
Submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10
Vote Required: Majority of Those Present



RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

. 06-042022:

. 07-042022:

. 08-042022:

. 09-042022:

. 10-042022:

. 11-042022:

. 12-042022:

. 13-042022:

. 14-042022:

. 15-042022:

Amend Section 6.1 (Order of Business) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 6.2 (Order of Business) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 6.3 (Order of Business) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 6.5 (Order of Business) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 7.1 (Handling of Resolutions and Ordinances) of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 7.0 (Handling of Resolutions and Ordinances) of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding
Section 7.3 and Changing Section Numbers thereafter (Formerly 7.3,
7.4,7.5,7.6,and 7.7) to Correctly Correspond with the New Numbering

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 8.3 (Written Agenda) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 8.4 (Written Agenda) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 8.6 (Written Agenda) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 10.2 (Privilege of Speaking) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present



RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION NO

. 16-042022:

. 17-042022:

. 18-042022:

. 19-042022:

. 20-042022:

. 21-042022:

. 22-042022:

. 23-042022:

. 24-042022:

Amend Section 13.1 (Suspension of Rules) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 15.0 (Publication of Reports) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 18.6 (General Duties of the County Board) of the Rules
of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 18 (General Duties of the County Board) of the Rules
of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Sections
18.9 and 18.10

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 19.1 (Annual Tour) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 19.0 (Annual Tour) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors by adding Section 19.3

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 20.0 (Per Diem, Mileage, Expenses) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by Adding Sections 20.9 and
20.10

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 21.0 (Access) of the Rules of the Winnebago County
Board of Supervisors by adding Section 21.2

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 22.1 (Committee Meetings) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present



RESOLUTION NO. 25-042022:

RESOLUTION NO. 26-042022:

RESOLUTION NO. 27-042022:

RESOLUTION NO. 28-042022:

RESOLUTION NO. 29-042022:

RESOLUTION NO. 30-042022:

Amend Section 22.0 (Committee Meetings) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding a New Section
22.2 and Changing Section Numbers thereafter (Formerly 22.2, 22.3,
and 22.4) to Correctly Correspond with the New Numbering

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 22.0 (Committee Meetings) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding New Sections 22.6,
22.7, and 22.8 and Changing Section Numbers thereafter (Formerly
22.5,22.6,22.7,22.8, 22.9, and 22.10) to Correctly Correspond with
the New Numbering

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 23.1 (Standing Committees) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Amend Section 25 (Special Meetings of the County Board) to the Rules
of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Add Section 26 (Role of the County Board Supervisor) to the Rules of
the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

Submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, District 10

Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Adopt the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors
Submitted by:
TOM EGAN, District 33
Vote Required: Majority of Those Present

Respectfully submitted,
Susan T. Ertmer
Winnebago County Clerk

Upon request, the county makes provisions for people with disabilities.

Times provided are estimates.

Any item on the agenda may be taken up by the Board after 6:00 P.M.



WINNEBAGO COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

E'THICS

HANDBOOK

Reviewed by Corporation Counsel - April 2022




THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
ETHICS HANDBOOK

Purpose
The purpose of this Handbook is to provide members of the Winnebago County Board of

Supervisors with an easy to read, simple Handbook which provides an explanation of State
Ethics Laws and Winnebago County Ordinances and Policies which apply to members of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors. Given the purpose of this Handbook, members of the
Board of Supervisors are urged to consult with the Corporation Counsel, and if necessary to
obtain a written opinion from that Office, with regard to any situations relating to the ethics of
their conduct.

Why Are There Ethics Laws and Ordinances?

There are three general reasons for the creation of ethics laws and ordinances. These are:
a. To strengthen citizens’ confidence in the integrity of governmental officials.

b. To help preserve the integrity of the government-decision making process.

¢. A policy that officials should not profit from holding public office.

Pertinent Statutes, Ordinances and Policies

A. Criminal Statutes
1. Section 946.10, Wisconsin Statutes (Bribery of Public Officials and Employees)
2. Section 946.11, Wisconsin Statutes (Special Privileges from Public Utilities)
3. Section 946.12, Wisconsin Statutes (Misconduct in Public Office)
4. Section 946.13, Wisconsin Statutes (Private Interest in Public Contract Prohibited)
5. Section 946.14, Wisconsin Statutes (Purchasing Claims of Less Than Full Value)

B. Relevant Civil Statutes
1. Section 19.59, Wisconsin Statutes (Codes of Ethics for Local Government Officials,
Employees and Candidates)

C. Ordinance Provisions
1. Section 1.01, General Code of Winnebago County (Receipt of Gifts and Gratuities)

D. Relevant Personnel Policy Provisions
1. Policy 8 — Conflicts of Interest
2. Policy 7.03 — Sexual Harassment

Criminal Statutes

Criminal statutes are statutes which make it a state crime to engage in certain conduct. Crimes

that are felonies have the possible consequence of imprisonment for one year or more in a state
penitentiary such as Waupun or Taycheedah. The conviction of a felony also results in the loss
of certain rights, such as the right to vote, the right to run for or hold public office, and the right
to own or possess a firearm.

The conviction of a misdemeanor has as a consequence possible imprisonment for less than one
year in the County Jail. A conviction on a misdemeanor charge, like conviction on a felony
charge, results in a person having a permanent criminal record. Misdemeanors, however, being



less serious crimes, do not result in the person convicted losing the same personal rights that
would be lost if the person had been convicted of a felony.

Crimes Relating to Public Officers

1. Bribery
Pursuant to Section 946.10, Wisconsin Statutes, accepting a bribe by a public officer or
employee is a Class H Felony. That Statute states that “Any public officer or public employee
who directly or indirectly accepts or offers to accept any property or any personal advantage,
which the officer or employee is not authorized to receive, pursuant to an understanding that
the officer or employee will act in a certain manner in relation to any matter which by law is
pending or might come before the officer or employee in the officer’s or employee’s capacity
as such officer or employee or that the officer or employee will do or omit to do any act in
violation of the officer’s or employee’s lawful duty” is guilty of a Class H Felony.

Example: A County Board member who is on the Zoning Committee agrees on behalf of a
developer, who is petitioning the Zoning Committee for approval of a zoning amendment, to
vote in favor of the developer’s petition for amendment so as to allow the development of a
residential subdivision. In return, the developer offers to provide the supervisor with a
discounted price upon a choice lot within the subdivision. The County Board Supervisor, in
accepting this offer, has accepted a bribe.

2. Special Privileges from Public Utilities — Class I Felony
Under Section 946.11(b) and (d), Statutes, any public officer who asks for or accepts from any
person or uses in any manner for any purpose any free pass or frank or any privilege withheld
from any person for the traveling accommodation or transportation of any person or property
or the transmission of any message or communication or who asks for and accepts or uses in
any manner or any purpose any frank or privilege withheld from any person for any product
or service produced, transmitted, delivered, furnished or rendered by any public utility is
guilty of a Class I Felony.

Example: The County Board Chairman asks Ameritech to provide him with free telephone
service to his home. Even though Ameritech refuses to provide free service to the County
Board Chairman, the County Board Chairman, by asking for this privilege, is guilty of a Class
I Felony.

3. Misconduct in Public Office — Class I Felony
Section 946.12, Statutes states that any public officer or public employee that does any of the
following is guilty of a Class I Felony:

a. Intentionally fails or refuses to perform a known mandatory, nondiscretionary, ministerial
duty of the officer’s of employee’s office or employment within the time or in the manner
required by law;

b. In the officer’s or employee’s capacity that such officer or employee does an act which the
officer or employee knows is in excess of the officer’s or employee’s lawful authority or
which the officer or employee knows the officer or employee is forbidden by law to do in
the officer’s or employee’s official capacity;

c. Whether by act of commission or omission in the officer’s or employee’s capacity as such
officer or employee exercises a discretionary power in a manner inconsistent with the
duties of the officer’s or employee’s office of employment or the rights of others and with
an intent to obtain a dishonest advantage for the officer or employee or another;



3
d. In the officer’s or employee’s capacity as such officer or employee makes an entry into an
account or record book or return certificate, report or statement which in a material respect
the officer or employee intentionally falsifies; or
e. Under color of the officer’s or employee’s office of employment, intentionally solicits or
accepts for the performance of any service or duty anything of value which the officer or
employee knows is greater or less than is fixed by law.

Example as to (a) above:

Section 59.11(3), Wisconsin Statutes, provides that, “All (board) meetings shall be held in the
county at places that are designated by the board. The board shall give adequate public notice of
the time, place and purpose of each meeting.” Thirty members of the board travel together to a
NACO Conference in Texas and decide to convene the meeting of the County Board of
Supervisors without notice to the press or general public. All county board members
participating in such a meeting would be guilty of a Class I Felony in that the statute mandates
that all meetings of the board must be held within Winnebago County and that adequate notice of
the time, place and purpose of each meeting must be provided by the board.

Example as to (b) above:

The County Board Chairman enters a car dealership and signs a contract for a new 4-wheel drive
pick-up truck to be purchased on behalf of the Land and Water Conservation Department,
despite the fact that the County Board Chairman has no authority to sign such a contract nor has
money been appropriated for the purchase of such a vehicle. As a result, the County Board
Chairman is guilty of a Class I Felony.

Example as to (c) above:

A county board member, who is also an attorney, represents a client who has a claim against the
County. The county board member votes to grant his client’s claim, knowing that he has an
agreement with his client to receive as a fee of 25% of whatever his client recovers. The county
board supervisor is guilty of a Class I Felony in this instance.

Example as to (d) above:

A county board supervisor travels to Madison for a county sponsored seminar. Despite the fact
that mileage from the supervisor’s home in Oshkosh to Madison is 170 miles round trip, the
supervisor claims mileage of 240 miles. This is an intentional falsification of the county board
supervisor’s mileage and thus he is guilty of a Class I Felony.

Example as to (e) above:

The Chairman of the Zoning Committee informs a person petitioning for a zoning amendment
that the person will have to pay a $500 “late fee” to have the petition considered at the next
Zoning Committee meeting, despite the fact that the county has no such fee requirement.
Despite the fact that the petitioner’s check is made out to the county, the committee chairman is
guilty of a Class I Felony in that he has solicited a fee which is greater than is fixed by law for
the performance of a duty.



i
4. 946.13 Private Interest in Public Contract Prohibited — Class I Felony
Section 946.13 provides that a public officer or public employee that does any of the following is
guilty of a Class I Felony:

In their private capacity, negotiates or bids for or enters into a contract in which the officer or
employee has a private pecuniary interest direct or indirect, if at the same time, the officer or
employee is authorized or required by law to participate in their official capacity in the making
of the contract or to perform in regard to this contract some official function requiring the
exercise of discretion on the officer or employee’s part or, in their capacity as an officer or
employee participates in the making of a contract in which the officer or employee has a private
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect or performs in regard to that contract some function
requiring the exercise of discretion on the officer’s or employee’s part. This section of the
statute does not apply to a contract in which any single public officer or employee is privately
interested but do not involve receipts or disbursements aggregating more than $15,000 in any
year; contracts involving the deposit of public funds in public depositories; contracts involving
loans made to the county; contracts for the publication of legal notices required to be published;
contracts for the issuance to a public officer or employee of tax titles, certificates or instruments
which are issued in lieu of payment of salary or other obligations due to such an employee; and
contracts for the sale of bonds or securities issued by the county or contracts for the payment of
wildlife damage, farmland preservation, water resources management or water pollution
abatement. This section also does not apply to any officer or employee who receives $10,000 or
less per year in compensation by reason of that officer or employee being a director, officer,
employee, agent or attorney for a state or national bank. In addition, there are various other
exceptions to the law which may apply in a number of very limited, specified cases.

Comment: Of all the areas of the criminal law, this is the area that a county board supervisor
may most easily violate, either inadvertently or as a result of the somewhat vague nature of the
statute. A prosecutor does not have to prove intent to violate the statute to obtain a conviction.
Moreover, compliance with this statute does not necessarily guarantee compliance with the State
Ethics Law or the County’s Ethics Ordinance. The following are a few simple examples with
regard to the applicability of the law:

Example #1: A county board supervisor operates a business for the repair of copying machines
and other similar office equipment. The Corporation Counsel’s Office calls the business and
asks the supervisor to make an emergency repair of his copying machine. The county board
supervisor performs this service and sends a bill to the County for $1500.00 for the repair. The
county board supervisor is not guilty of a Class I Felony in this case in that the aggregate amount
of the contract was less than $15,000 per year.

Example #2: During the course of the year, the same county board supervisor as in Example #1,
above, repairs copying machines in 20 different offices for the county. Moreover, the county
board supervisor, as a member of the Personnel & Finance Committee, has voted in favor of
separate appropriations of $1,000 each for each department for copying machine repairs. The
aggregate bill for these services is $20,000. In this example, the county board supervisor is in
violation of the statute and guilty of a Class C Felony in that he has participated in the making of
the contract and appropriation of the money for the contract and performed services for the
county in an aggregate amount greater than $15,000 during that calendar year.

5. Section 946.14 — Purchasing Claims of Less Than Full Value



5
This statute prohibits an official from purchasing a claim against the County for less than full
value.

Example: Tom’s wife was killed in an accident with a County Highway truck. Tom files a
survivor’s claim against the County for $1 million. A county board supervisor purchases Tom’s
claim against the County from him for $10,000, hoping to sue and recover a greater amount from
the County. The supervisor’s actions constitute a Class I Felony.

Civil Laws
-19.59 Codes of Ethics for Local Government Officials, Employees and Candidates.

Section 19.59(1)(a): No local public official may use his or her public position or office to
obtain financial gain or anything of substantial value for the private benefit of himself or herself
or his or her immediate family or for an organization with which the official is associated.

Who is a Public Official?

Pursuant to Section 19.42(7w), Statutes, elected county officials, individuals appointed or
contracted with to serve or be employed by the county for a specified term; and persons
appointed to their positions (department heads) who serve at the pleasure of the County Board or
County Executive are public officials.

What is “Anything of Substantial Value?”

In a 1977 Opinion, the State Ethics Board, interpreting the Ethics Code applicable to state
officials, considered the legality of a state official’s acceptance of a $25 gift. In that Opinion, the
State Ethics Board stated: “We did not mean to suggest it is improper for a state official to accept
something that is a mere token of appreciation, but we wish to distinguish between mere tokens
of appreciation and items of merchantable value. Applying this test, we believe that a gift having
a value of $25.00 or more is an item of value of which should rebound to the state if offered to a
state official in appreciation of official fulfillment of tasks related to his or her public
responsibilities. Pens and pins, on the other hand, may be mere tokens ... .”

It is important to realize what the Ethics Board is saying in its opinion. Its ruling says: 1) Any
gift over $25 violates the law; 2) A gift under $25 could violate the law; and 3) Acceptance of
promotional trinkets does not violate the law.

However, in another Ethics Opinion, the Ethics Board stated, “We think it is inappropriate for
any state officer or employee to accept anything more than nominal value from any business
desiring to enter into an agreement with the State of Wisconsin if the official or employee will
exercise any influence with respect to the proposed agreement. Nevertheless, the Legislature has
noted that standards for elected and for state public officials need to distinguish between those
minor and inconsequential conflicts therein avoidable in a free society and those conflicts which
are substantial and material. Under ordinary circumstances, therefore, we believe that an officer
or an employee of the State of Wisconsin may partake of refreshments offered by a distributor of
office equipment insofar as the value of the refreshments is clearly nominal and the
circumstances are conducive to review and discussion of the equipment marketed.”

What is Private Benefit?
Anything obtained through the use of an official’s public position or office only violates the law
if the item benefits the official or his or her immediate family on a private basis.




6

Example: The county board supervisor is also a town board supervisor. He uses his position as
a county board supervisor to obtain a grant for the town in the amount of $100,000. In that the
county board supervisor’s actions do not result in a private benefit to the county board supervisor
or his or her immediate family, there is no violation of the law.

Example: A county board supervisors attends the Wisconsin Counties Association Convention.,
There is an exhibition hall at the convention where many private businesses have purchased
booths as exhibitors. In order to gain admission to the exhibition hall, a person must be an
exhibitor, an elected county official, a county employee, an employee of the Wisconsin Counties
Association or must have some type of connection with county government. A general
contractor has an exhibit booth in the hall. The contractor has posted a sign indicating that two
Packer tickets will be awarded to the winner of a drawing. Persons visiting the exhibit can enter
the drawing by putting their name in a fish bowl at the contractor’s booth. A county board
supervisor places his name in the fish bowl and subsequently wins the two Packer tickets. In the
opinion of the State Ethics Board, it would be a violation of the law for the county board
supervisor to accept the tickets for himself. This is because he is using his official public
position for the benefit of himself or his immediate family on a private basis. This is because the
supervisor would not have been eligible to enter the exhibit hall and enter the drawing but for his
public position as a supervisor. The supervisor may only accept the tickets if the tickets are
given to the county government. Absent any county policy to the contrary, the tickets would be
required to be turned over to the office of County Executive, who, as Chief Administrative
Officer for the County, would determine the means of their disposition.

Example: A county board supervisor attends the Wisconsin Counties Association convention.
The county board supervisor, while at the convention, goes out to dinner at a local restaurant. In
the lobby of the restaurant, the restaurant owner has placed a box with entry forms to enter a
contest to win two free Packer tickets. The county board supervisor enters the drawing and
subsequently wins the two free Packer tickets. In this instance, it would not be illegal for the
county board supervisor to accept the tickets. This is because anybody entering the restaurant,
regardless of their status, could enter the drawing. It was not necessary to be a county board
supervisor or connected with county government to enter the restaurant or to enter the contest.
Thus, the county board supervisor has not used his public position to benefit himself or his
immediate family on a private basis.

What is “Immediate Family?”

Pursuant to Section 19.42(7), Statutes, the immediate family of a public official includes that
individual’s spouse, and any individual who is related by marriage, lineal dissent or adoption
who receives directly or indirectly more than % of his or her support from the public official or
from whom the public official receives directly or indirectly more than % of his or her support.
Consequently, spouses and minor children of public officials fall within the definition of
immediate family. An adult son, daughter, niece, nephew, parent or grandparent who is
supported and who receives more than 50% support from the public official is also “immediate
family”. Conversely, if the public official receives more than 50% of his support from his
parents, children, grandparents, or uncle or an aunt, those relatives from whom the public
officials receives such support fall within the definition of “immediate family”.

On the other hand, an adult son or daughter of a public official does not fall within the definition
of “immediate family” nor does any other adult relative of the official provided that the son,
daughter or other relative who receives less than 50% of their support from the public official or,



7
conversely, if the public official receives less than 50% of his support from the son, daughter or
other relative.

Example: A county board supervisor votes to approve a collective bargaining agreement with
staff at the county-owned nursing home. The county board supervisor’s daughter works as a
nurse’s aide at the nursing home and is covered under the collective bargaining agreement. The
county board supervisor does not financially support his daughter nor does the daughter
financially support the county board supervisor. The county board supervisor, by voting in favor
of the collective bargaining agreement, does not violate state statute.

Example: The wife of a county board supervisor works as a nurse for the County Health
Department. The annual budget resolution comes before the County Board for a vote. The
county board supervisor may vote upon the budget resolution, in that the resolution does not
specifically focus on the County Health Department and the County Health Department’s
appropriation is but a small part of the budget. However, the county board supervisor would be
prohibited from voting upon an amendment to the budget which might affect the salary, benefits
or the employment position of his wife, in that it may be presumed that the supervisor was
utilizing his position to benefit his immediate family on a private basis.

What Is “Organization with Which the Official is Associated”?

An organization, as defined in Section 19.42(11), Statutes, means any corporation, partnership,
proprietorship, firm, enterprise, franchise, association, trust or other legal entity other than an
individual or body politic. “Associated”, as defined by Section 19.42, Statutes, when used with
reference to an organization, includes any organization in which an individual or member of his
or her immediate family is a director, officer or trustee, or owns or controls, directly or
indirectly, and severally or in the aggregate at least 10% of the outstanding equity or of which an
individual or a member of his or her immediately family is an authorized representative or agent.

Example: A county board supervisor is a member of the zoning committee. A petition for
zoning amendment comes before the zoning committee from the Kimberly Clark Corporation.
Five years previously, the county board supervisor inherited 1,000 shares of Kimberly Clark
common stock. (For purposes of this example, approximately 30 million shares of Kimberly
Clark common stock are outstanding). The county board supervisor is not a director, officer or
trustee of Kimberly Clark Corporation. It is not a violation of Section 19.59(1)(a), Statutes, for
the county board supervisor to participate and vote upon the petition for zoning amendment.

Example: The same situation as the previous example, except in this case, the county board
supervisor owns 100 shares of Kimberly Clark stock, but serves as a trustee for a private
foundation, which controls 15% of the common stock of Kimberly Clark Corporation. In this
example, the county board supervisor would be prohibited from voting upon the petition for
zoning amendment.

Example: Friends of a county board supervisor form a small computer business. They have
incorporated the computer business and issued 100 shares of stock. They have placed the county
board supervisor on the board of directors and given him one share of stock of the corporation.

A resolution comes before the county board to approve a three year contract for computer
services with that corporation. The county board supervisor, as a director of the corporation, is
prohibited from participating in or voting upon the resolution, despite the fact that he owns only
one share of stock in the corporation, in that he is a director of the corporation.



Conflicting Interests - 19.59(1)(c)

No local public official may take any official actions substantially affecting a matter in which the
official, a member of his or her immediate family or an organization with which the official is
associated has a substantial financial interest.

The statute does not apply to any action taken by a county board supervisor with regard to a
resolution to modify or amend a county ordinance.

Example: A resolution comes before the county board whereby the Nature Conservancy will
purchase property from Winnebago County. The county board supervisor is a member of the
Nature Conservancy, (a national charitable wildlife preservation organization). It would not be
illegal for the county board member to vote upon the resolution in that he is not “associated”
with the Nature Conservancy pursuant to Section 19.42(2), Statutes, as long as he is not a
director, officer or trustee of that organization nor as long as neither he nor any of his immediate
family owns an equity of 10% in that organization nor is a representative of the organization.

Penalties
The civil penalty for violation of Section 19.59(1), Statutes, is a forfeiture of not more than
$1,000 for each violation.

The criminal penalty for intentionally violating Wis. Stat. 19.59 (1)(a), (b), or (c) is a fine of not
less than $100 or more than $5000, imprisonment of not more than one year in the county jail, or
both. Wis. Stat. 19.58 (1)(a).

County Ethics Ordinance

Section 1.01 of the General Code of Winnebago County provides: “No County employee or
official shall receive or offer to receive, either directly or indirectly, any gift, gratuity or other
thing of value which he is not authorized to receive from any person who “(a) has or is seeking
to obtain contractual or other business or financial relationships with the county or county board;
or (b) conducts operations or activities which are regulated by the county or county board”. A
fine for the first offense of not less than $5.00 but not more than $500.00 may be imposed with
regard to violation of the ordinance. The ordinance is restricted to the receipt of gifts, gratuities
or other things of value from persons or firms contracting with the county, seeking to obtain
contracts or other business or financial relationships with the county or conducting operations or
activities which are regulated by the county or county board. Like the state statute, no de
minimus value is placed upon the gift, gratuity or other thing of value. It is unlikely that a court
would interpret this ordinance to include the receipt of refreshments or promotional trinkets
(pens, pencils, keychains, etc.).

County Personnel Policy

County Personnel Policy applies generally to employees of Winnebago County, as opposed to
elected officials. However, it should be noted that the Conflict of Interest section of the
Personnel Policy Manual (Policy 8) prohibits county employees from using their office or
position for personal financial gain or the financial gain of their family. In addition, it precludes
county employees from engaging in political activity during normal work hours or the use of
county equipment, property or office space for that purpose. It also prohibits employees from
directly or indirectly coercing any person to contribute monetary or other types of assistance for
any political candidate, party or purpose. In addition, the policy prohibits any person in a
supervisory position, whether an employee or public official, from using that supervisory




position to appoint to any position, funded by his budget or operating under his direct or
indirect supervision, a relative or any person considered to be a significant other. Definition of
“relative” includes the spouse, parent, child, uncle, aunt, brother, sister, niece, nephew or any of
the same relatives of that person’s spouse. A “significant other” includes a person within whom
the supervisor cohabitates and with whom he maintains an intimate relationship.

Discrimination and Harassment Prohibitions

County Board Supervisors, like County employees, are prohibited by state and federal law from
discriminating against persons on the basis of their race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital
status or disability. County Board Supervisors in participating in employment selection
processes, selection of contractors, and their interaction with employees of the county, as well as
their interaction with employees of firms doing business with the county and those receiving
services or having business with the county, need to be alert to the fact that discrimination or
harassment on such a basis may not only open the county to liability but may open themselves to
personal liability, especially if such discrimination or harassment, on the supervisor’s part, is
intentional in nature.

Legal Assistance
Section 19.59(5)(b), Wisconsin Statutes, provides legal protection for county officials with

regard to ethics questions. Pursuant to that section, if an advisory request is made of the County
Corporation Counsel and an advisory opinion issued in writing by the Corporation Counsel with
regard to an ethics question, such a request, and opinion serve as prima facie evidence of intent
on the part of the county board supervisor to comply with the ethics code.

It should be noted that such a request can be made in confidence. The Corporation Counsel may
release his opinion to the general public, provided that sufficient alterations are made to the
opinion to disclose the identities of the individuals involved in the opinion.

If the county board supervisor believes that he or she has an ethical dilemma, it is recommended
that they make a written request for a written opinion from the Corporation Counsel prior to
taking any action or inaction with regard to a situation. Such a request provides legal protection
to the supervisor should controversy arise with regard to the supervisor’s actions in the future.

“Smell Test”

As you can see by many of the examples provided in this Handbook, many of the situations that
a county board supervisor may run into with regard to the ethics laws do not have clear cut
answers. In deciding whether to take a specific action or to accept a gift of any value, it is
recommended that a county board supervisor first administer a “smell test” to the situation. The
“smell test” is, “Would any reasonable person believe that there was anything suspect or “fishy”
with regard to the actions which I am contemplating taking?” If the answer to the question is
“yes”, then your best course of action as a county board supervisor is either to seck a legal
opinion from the Corporation Counsel or refrain from taking the action or participating in
making a decision with regard to the subject matter which is before you. In the long run, the
acceptance of a gift of little value is not worth the potential headache which may result to you
and your family should the press or a political enemy choose to publicize the situation.



10
State Ethics Board Web Site
The State Ethics Board maintains a web site, which includes opinions issued by it dating back to
1992. Its address is: http://ethics.state.wi.us/

State Statute Website
The internet website for the Wisconsin State Statutes has the following address:
Website: www.legis.state.wi.us/rsb/stats.html




Updated 2019-20 Wis. Stats. Published and certified under s. 35.18. April 5, 2022.

27 Updated 19-20 Wis. Stats.

(c) A state public official may receive and retain from the state
or on behalf of the state transportation, lodging, meals, food or
beverage, or reimbursement therefor or payment or reimburse-
ment of actual and reasonable costs that the official can show by
clear and convincing evidence were incurred or received on behalf
of the state of Wisconsin and primarily for the benefit of the state
and not primarily for the private benefit of the official or any other
person.

(d) A state public official may receive and retain from a politi-
cal commiltee under ch. 11 transportation, lodging, meals, food or
beverage, or reimbursement therefor or payment or reimburse-
ment of costs permitted and reported in accordance with ch. 11,

(e) A state public official who is an officer or employee of the
Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation may solicit,
receive and retain on behalf of the state anything of value for the
purpose of any of the following:

1. The sponsorship by the Wisconsin Economic Development
Corporation of a trip to a foreign country primarily to promote
trade between that country and this state that the Wisconsin Eco-
nomic Development Corporation can demonstrate through clear
and convincing evidence is primarily for the benefit of this state.

2. Hosting individuals in order to promote business, eco-
nomic development, tourism or conferences sponsored by multi-
state, national or international associations of governments or
governmental officials.

(em) A state public official who is an officer or employee of
the department of tourism may solicit, receive and retain on behalf
of the state anything of value for the purpose of hosting individu-
als in order to promote tourism.

(f) A state public official or a local public official may receive
and retain from the Wisconsin Economic Development Corpora-
tion anything of value which the Wisconsin Economic Develop-
ment Corporation is authorized to provide under par. (¢) and may
receive and retain from the department of tourism anything of
value which the department of tourism is authorized to provide
under par. (em).

(g) A state public official who is a member of the Wisconsin
commission for the U.S. semiquincentennial commission may
solicit, receive, and retain on behalf of the state anything of value
for the purposes specified under s. 45.13.

(4) If a state public official receives a payment not authorized
by this subchapter, in cash or otherwise, for a published work or
a talk or meeting, the official may not retain it. If practicable, the
official shall deposit it with the department or municipality with
which he or she is associated or, in the case of a justice or judge
of a court of record, with the director of state courts. If that is not
practicable, the official shall return it or its equivalent to the payor
or convey it to the state or to a charitable organization other than
one with which he or she is associated.

History: 1977 ¢, 277; 1983 a. 61, 538; 1985 4. 203; 1989 a. 31, 338; 1991 a. 39;
1995 a. 27 ss. 455 10 457, 9116 (5); 2011 a. 32; 2015 a. 118 5,266 (10): 2017 a. 112;
2021 a, 95,

The interaction of 5. 19.56 with the prohibition against fumishing anything of
pecuniary value to state officials under s. 13.625 is discussed. 80 Atty. Gen. 205,

19.57 Conferences, visits and economic development
activities. The Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation
shall file a report with the commission no later than April 30 annu-
ally, specifying the source and amount of anything of value
received by the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation
during the preceding calendar year for a purpose specified in s.
19.56 (3) (e), and the program or activity in connection with which
the thing is received, together with the location and date of that
program or activity.

History: 1991 a, 39; 1995 a.275. 9116 (5); 2011 a. 32; 2015 a. 118 5. 266 (10).

19.575 Tourism activities. The department of tourism shall
file a report with the commission no later than April 30 annually,
specifying the source and amount of anything of value received
by the department of tourism during the preceding calendar year
for a purpose specified in s, 19.56 (3) (em) and the program or

GENERAL DUTIES OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

19.59

activity in connection with which the thing is received, together
with the location and date of that program or activity.
History: 1995 a. 27; 2015 a. 118 5. 266 (10).

19.579 Civil penalties. (1) Except as provided in sub. (2),
any person who violates this subchapter may be required to forfeit
not more than $500 for each violation of s. 19.43, 19.44, or 19.56
(2) or not more than $5,000 for each violation of any other provi-
sion of this subchapter. If the court determines that the accused
has realized economic gain as a result of the violation, the court
may, in addition, order the accused to forfeit the amount gained as
a result of the violation. In addition, if the court determines that
a state public official has violated s. 19.45 (13), the court may
order the official to forfeit an amount equal to the amount or value
of any political contribution, service, or other thing of value that
was wrongfully obtained. If the court determines that a state pub-
lic official has violated s. 19.45 (13) and no political contribution,
service, or other thing of value was obtained, the court may order
the official to forfeit an amount equal to the maximum contribu-
tion authorized under s. 11.1101 (1) for the office held or sought
by the official, whichever amount is greater. The attomey general,
when so requested by the commission, shall institute proceedings
to recover any forfeiture incurred under this section which is not
paid by the person against whom it is assessed,

(2) Any person who violates s. 19.45 (13) may be required to
forfeit not more than $5,000.
History: 2003 a. 39; 2007 a. 1 ss. 121, 130, 131; 2015 a. 117; 2015 a. 118 5. 266
(10).

19.58 Criminal penalties. (1) (a) Any person who inten-
tionally violates any provision of this subchapter except s, 19.45
(13) or 19.59 (1) (br), or a code of ethics adopted or established
under s. 19.45 (11) (a) or (b), shall be fined not less than $100 nor
more than $5,000 or imprisoned not more than one year in the
county jail or both,

(b) Any person who intentionally violates s. 19.45 (13) or
19.59 (1) (br) is guilty of a Class I felony.

(2) The penalties under sub. (1) do not limit the power of either
house of the legislature to discipline its own members or to
tmpeach a public official, or limit the power of a department to dis-
cipline its state public officials or employees.

(3) In this section “intentionally” has the meaning given under
8. 939.23.

(4) A person who violates s. 19.50 may be fined not more than
$10,000 or imprisened for not more than 9 months or both.

History: 1973 ¢, 90; Stats. 1973 5. 11,10; 1973 c. 334 ss, 33, 57, 58; Stats. 1973
8. 19.50; 1975 ¢. 200; 1977 ¢. 277 ss. 34, 37 Stats, 1977 s, 19.58; 2003 a. 39; 2015
a. 118,

19.59 Codes of ethics for local government officials,
employees and candidates. (1) (a) No local public official
may use his or her public position or office to obtain financial gain
or anything of substantial value for the private benefit of himself
or herself or his or her immediate family, or for an organization
with which he or she is associated. A violation of this paragraph
includes the acceptance of free or discounted admissions to a pro-
fessional baseball or football game by a member of the district
board of a local professional baseball park district created under
subch. III of ch. 229 or a local professional football stadium dis-
trict created under subch. IV of ch. 229, This paragraph does not
prohibit a local public official from using the title or prestige of his
or her office to obtain campaign contributions that are permitted
and reported as required by ch. 11. This paragraph does not pro-
hibit a local public official from obtaining anything of value from
the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation or the depart-
ment of tourism, as provided under s. 19.56 (3) (f).

(b) No person may offer or give to a local public official,
directly or indirectly, and no local public official may solicit or
accept from any person, directly or indirectly, anything of value
if it could reasonably be expected to influence the local public
official’s vote, official actions or judgment, or could reasonably

2019-20 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2021 Wis. Act 162 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on April 5, 2022. Published and certified under s. 35.18. Changes effective after April

5, 2022, are designated by NOTES. (Published 4-5-22)



Updated 201920 Wis. Stats. Published and certified under s. 35.18. April S, 2022,

19.59

be considered as a reward for any official action or inaction on the
part of the local public official. This paragraph does not prohibit
a local public official from engaging in oulside employment.

(br) No local public official or candidate for local public office
may, directly or by means of an agent, give, or offer or promise to
give, or withhold, or offer or promise to withhold, his or her vote
or influence, or promise to take or refrain from taking official
action with respect to any proposed or pending matter in consider-
ation of, or upon condition that, any other person make or refrain
from making a political contribution, or provide or refrain from
providing any service or other thing of value, to or for the benefit
of a candidate, a political party, any committee registered under
ch. 11, or any person making a communication that contains a ref-
erence to a clearly identified local public official holding an elec-
tive office or to a candidate for local public office.

(c) Except as otherwise provided in par. (d), no local public
official may:

1. Take any official action substantially affecting a matter in
which the official, a member of his or her immediate family, or an
organization with which the official is associated has a substantial
financial interest.

2. Use his or her office or position in a way that produces or
assists in the production of a substantial benefit, direct or indirect,
for the official, one or more members of the official’s immediate
family either separately or together, or an organization with which
the official is associated.

(d) Paragraph (c) does not prohibit a local public official from
taking any action concerning the lawful payment of salaries or
employee benefits or reimbursement of actual and necessary
expenses, or prohibit a local public official from taking official
action with respect to any proposal to modify a county or munici-
pal ordinance.

(f) Paragraphs (a) to (c) do not apply to the members of a local
committee appointed under s, 289.33 (7) (a) to negotiate with the
owner or operator of, or applicant for a license to operate, a solid
waste disposal or hazardous waste facility under s. 289.33, with
respect to any matter contained or proposed to be contained in a
wrilten agreement between a municipality and the owner, operator
or applicant or in an arbitration award or proposed award that is
applicable to those parties.

(g) 1. In this paragraph:

a. “District” means a local professional baseball park district
created under subch. IIT of ch. 229 or a local professional football
stadium district created under subch. IV of ch. 229.

b. “District board member” means a member of the district
board of a district,

2. No district board member may accept or retain any trans-
portation, lodging, meals, food or beverage, or reimbursement
therefor, except in accordance with this paragraph.

3. A district board member may receive and retain reimburse-
ment or payment of actual and reasonable expenses for a pub-
lished work or for the presentation of a talk or participation in a
meeting related to processes, proposals and issues affecting a dis-
trict if the payment or reimbursement is paid or arranged by the
organizer of the event or the publisher of the work.,

4, A district board member may receive and retain anything
of value if the activity or occasion for which it is given is unrelated
to the member’s use of the time, facilities, services or supplies of
the district not generally available to all residents of the district
and the member can show by clear and convincing evidence that
the payment or reimbursement was unrelated to and did not arise
from the recipient’s holding or having held a public office and was
paid for a purpose unrelated to the purposes specified in subd. 3.

5. A district board member may receive and retain from the
district or on behalf of the district transportation, lodging, meals,
food or beverage, or reimbursement therefor or payment or reim-
bursement of actual and reasonable costs that the member can
show by clear and convincing evidence were incurred or received
on behalf of the district and primarily for the benefit of the district

GENERAL DUTIES OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

Updated 19-20 Wis. Stats. 28

and not primarily for the private benefit of the member or any
other person,

6. No district board member may intentionally use or disclose
information gained in the course of or by reason of his or her offi-
cial position or activities in any way that could result in the receipt
of anything of value for himself or herself, for his or her immediate
family, or for any other person, if the information has not been
communicated to the public or is not public information.

7. No district board member may use or attempt to use the
position held by the member to influence or gain unlawful bene-
fits, advantages or privileges personally or for others.

8. No district board member, member of a district board mem-
ber’s immediate family, nor any organization with which the dis-
trict board member or a member of the district board member’s
immediate family owns or controls at least 10 percent of the out-
standing equity, voting rights, or outstanding indebtedness may
enter into any contract or lease involving a payment or payments
of more than $3,000 within a 12-month period, in whole or in part
derived from district funds unless the district board member has
first made written disclosure of the nature and extent of such rela-
tionship or interest to the commission and to the district. Any con-
tract or lease entered into in violation of this subdivision may be
voided by the district in an action commenced within 3 years of
the date on which the commission, or the district, knew or should
have known that a violation of this subdivision had occurred. This
subdivision does not affect the application of s. 946.13.

9. No former district board member, for 12 months following
the date on which he or she ceases to be a district board member,
may, for compensation, on behalf of any person other than a gov-
ernmental entity, make any formal or informal appearance before,
or negotiate with, any officer or employee of the district with
which he or she was associated as a district board member within
12 months prior to the date on which he or she ceased to be a dis-
trict board member,

10. No former district board member, for 12 months follow-
ing the date on which he or she ceases to be a district board mem-
ber, may, for compensation, on behalf of any person other than a
governmental entity, make any formal or informal appearance
before, or negotiate with, any officer or employee of a district with
which he or she was associated as a district board member in con-
nection with any judicial or quasi~judicial proceeding, applica-
tion, contract, claim, or charge which might give rise to a judicial
or quasi—judicial proceeding which was under the former mem-
ber’s responsibility as a district board member within 12 months
prior to the date on which he or she ceased to be a member.

11. No former district board member may, for compensation,
act on behalf of any party other than the district with which he or
she was associated as a district board member in connection with
any judicial or quasi—judicial proceeding, application, contract,
claim, or charge which might give rise to a judicial or quasi—judi-
cial proceeding in which the former member participated per-
sonally and substantially as a district board member.

(1m) In addition to the requirements of sub. (1), any county,
city, village or town may enact an ordinance establishing a code
of ethics for public officials and employees of the county or
municipality and candidates for county or municipal elective
offices.

(2) An ordinance enacted under this section shall specify the
positions to which it applies. The ordinance may apply to mem-
bers of the immediate family of individuals who hold positions or
who are candidates for positions to which the ordinance applies.

(3) An ordinance enacted under this section may contain any
of the following provisions:

(a) A requirement for local public officials, other employees
of the county or municipality and candidates for local public office
to identify any of the economic interests specified in s. 19.44.

(b) A provision directing the county or municipal clerk or
board of election commissioners to omit the name of any candi-
date from an election ballot who fails to disclose his or her eco-

2019-20 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2021 Wis. Act 162 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on April 5, 2022. Published and certified under s. 35.18. Changes effective after April

5, 2022, are designated by NOTES. (Published 4-5-22}



Updated 2019-20 Wis. Stats, Published and certified under s. 35.18. April 5, 2022.

29 Updated 19-20 Wis. Stats.

nomic interests in accordance with the requirements of the ordi-
nance.

(c) A provision directing the county or municipal treasurer to
withhold the payment of salaries or expenses from any local pub-
lic official or other employee of the county or municipality who
fails to disclose his or her economic interests in accordance with
the requirements of the ordinance,

(d) A provision vesting administration and civil enforcement
of the ordinance with an ethics board appointed in a manner speci-
fied in the ordinance. A board created under this paragraph may
issue subpoenas, administer oaths and investigate any violation of
the ordinance on its own motion or upon complaint by any person.
The ordinance may empower the board to issue opinions upon
request. Records of the board’s opinions, opinion requests and
investigations of violations of the ordinance may be closed in
whole or in part to public inspection if the ordinance so provides.

(e) Provisions prescribing ethical standards of conduct and
prohibiting conflicts of interest on the part of local public officials
and other employees of the county or municipality or on the part
of former local public officials or former employees of the county
or municipality.

(f) A provision prescribing a forfeiture for violation of the ordi-
nance in an amount not exceeding $1,000 for each offense. A min-
imum forfeiture not exceeding $100 for each offense may also be
prescribed.

(4) This section may not be construed to limit the authority of
a county, city, village or town to regulate the conduct of its offi-
cials and employees to the extent that it has authority to regulate
that conduct under the constitution or other laws,

(5) (a) Any individual, either personally or on behalf of an
organization or governmental body, may request of a county or
municipal ethics board, or, in the absence of a county or municipal
ethics board, a county corporation counsel or attorney for a local
governmental unit, an advisory opinion regarding the propriety of
any matter to which the person is or may become a party. Any
appointing officer, with the consent of a prospective appointee,
may request of a county or municipal ethics board, or, in the
absence of a county or municipal ethics board, a county corpora-
tion counsel or attorney for a local governmental unit an advisory
opinion regarding the propriety of any matter to which the pro-
spective appointee is or may become a party. The county or
municipal ethics board or the county corporation counsel or attor-
ney shall review a request for an advisory opinion and may advise
the person making the request. Advisory opinions and requests
therefor shall be in writing. It is prima facie evidence of intent to
comply with this section or any ordinance enacted under this sec-
tion when a person refers a matter to a county or municipal ethics
board or a county corporation counse] or attorney for a local gov-
ernmental unit and abides by the advisory opinion, if the material
facts are as stated in the opinion request. A county or municipal
ethics board may authorize a county corporation counsel or attor-
ney to act in its stead in instances where delay is of substantial
inconvenience or detriment to the requesting party. Except as pro-
vided in par. (b), neither a county corporation counsel or attorney
for a local governmental unit nor a member or agent of a county
or municipal ethics board may make public the identity of an indi-
vidual requesting an advisory opinion or of individuals or organi-
zations mentioned in the opinion.

(b) A county or municipal ethics board, county corporation
counsel or attorney for a local governmental unit replying to a
request for an advisory opinion may make the opinion public with
the consent of the individual requesting the advisory opinion or
the organization or governmental body on whose behalf it is
requested and may make public a summary of an advisory opinion
issued under this subsection after making sufficient alterations in
the summary to prevent disclosing the identities of individuals
involved in the opinion. A person who makes or purports to make
public the substance of or any portion of an advisory opinion

GENERAL DUTIES OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

19.59

requested by or on behalf of the person waives the confidentiality
of the request for an advisory opinion and of any records obtained
or prepared by the county or municipal ethics board, the county
corporation counsel or the attomey for the local governmental unit
in connection with the request for an advisory opinion.

(6) Any county corporation counsel, attorney for a local gov-
emmental unit or statewide association of local governmental
units may request the commission to issue an opinion concerning
the interpretation of this section. The commission shall review
such a request and may advise the person making the request.

(7) (a) Any person who violates sub. (1) may be required to
forfeit not more than $1,000 for each violation, and, if the court
determines that the accused has violated sub. (1) (br), the court
may, in addition, order the accused to forfeit an amount equal to
the amount or value of any political contribution, service, or other
thing of value that was wrongfully obtained.

(b) Any person who violates sub. (1) may be required to forfeit
not more than $1,000 for each violation, and, if the court deter-
mines that a local public official has violated sub. (1) (br) and no
political contribution, service or other thing of value was
obtained, the court may, in addition, order the accused to forfeit
an amount equal to the maximum contribution authorized under
s. 11.1101 (1) for the office held or sought by the official, which-
ever amount is greater,

(8) (a) Subsection (1) shall be enforced in the name and on
bebalf of the state by action of the district attorney of any county
wherein a violation may occur, upon the verified complaint of any
person.

(b) In addition and supplementary to the remedy provided in
sub. (7), the district attorney may commence an action, separately
or in conjunction with an action brought to obtain the remedy pro-
vided in sub. (7), to obtain such other legal or equitable relief,
including but not limited to mandamus, injunction or declaratory
judgment, as may be appropriate under the circumstances.

(c) If the district attorney fails to commence an action to
enforce sub. (1) (a), (b), or (¢) to (g) within 20 days after receiving
a verified complaint or if the district attorney refuses to commence
such an action, the person making the complaint may petition the
attorney general to act upon the complaint. The attorney general
may then bring an action under par. (a) or (b), or both.

(cm) No complaint alleging a violation of sub. (1) (br) may be
filed during the period beginning 120 days before a general or
spring election, or during the period commencing on the date of
the order of a special election under s. 8.50, and ending on the date
of that election, against a candidate who files a declaration of can-
didacy to have his or her name appear on the ballot at that election.

(cn) If the district attorney for the county in which a violation
of sub. (1) (br) is alleged to occur receives a verified complaint
alleging a violation of sub. (1) (br), the district attorney shall,
within 30 days after receipt of the complaint, either commence an
investigation of the allegations contained in the complaint or dis-
miss the complaint. If the district attorney dismisses the com-
plaint, with or without investigation, the district attorney shall
notify the complainant in writing. Upon receiving notification of
the dismissal, the complainant may then file the complaint with
the attorney general or the district attorney for a county that is
adjacent to the county in which the violation is alleged to occur.
The attorney general or district attorney may then investigate the
allegations contained in the complaint and commence & prosecu-
tion,

(d) If the district attorney prevails in such an action, the court
shall award any forfeiture recovered together with reasonable
costs to the county wherein the violation occurs. If the attorney
general prevails in such an action, the court shall award any forfei-
ture recovered together with reasonable costs to the state.

History: 1979 c. 120; 1981 c. 149; 1981 ¢. 335 5. 26; 1983 a. 166 5. 16; 1991 a.
39,269; 1995 a. 56,227, 1999 a. 167; 2001 a, 109; 2003 a. 39; 2007 a. 132015 a, 117;
2015 a. 118 ss. 204, 266 (10); 2017 a. 112,

2019-20 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2021 Wis. Act 162 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on April 5, 2022. Published and certified under s. 35.18. Changes effective after April

5, 2022, are designated by NOTES. (Published 4~5-22)



Updated 2019-20 Wis. Stats. Published and certified under s. 35.18. April 5, 2022.

946.03
TION
learning that the premises are being so used, permits such use to
be continued is guilty of a Class I felony.
History: 1977 ¢. 173; 2001 a. 109.

8946.06 Improper use of the flag. (1) Whoever intention-
ally does any of the following is guilty of a Class A misdemeanor:

(a) Places on or attaches to the flag any word, mark, design, or
advertisement not properly a part of such flag; or

(b) Exposes to public view a flag upon which has been placed
or attached a word, mark, design, or advertisement not properly
a part of such flag; or

(c) Manufactures or exposes to public view an article of mer-
chandise or a wrapper or receptacle for merchandise upon which
the flag is depicted; or

(d) Uses the flag for commercial advertising purposes.

(2) This section does not apply to flags depicted on written or
printed documents or periodicals or on stationery, ornaments, pic-
tures, or jewelry, provided there are no unauthorized words or
designs on such flag and provided the flag is not connected with
any advertisement.

(3) In this section “flag” means anything that is or purports to
be the Stars and Stripes, the United States shield, the United States
coat of arms, the Wisconsin state flag, or a copy, picture, or repre-
sentation of any of them.

History: 1977 c. 173; 2003 a. 243.

A flag miguse statute was i pplied 1o a flag hung upside down
with a peace symbol affixed, The context imbued the display with protected elements
of communication, Spence v. Washington, 418 1).8. 405, 94 8, Ct. 2727, 41 L, Ed.
2d 842 (1974).

The Washington flag desceration staute held unconstitutional in Spence, 418 1.8,
405 (1974), when applied to a mere display of an allered flag in the absence of a dis-
turbince of the peace, was identical in all essential ways to this section. Koser v.
County of Price, 834 F. Supp. 305 (1993).

ional as

SUBCHAPTER II
BRIBERY AND OFFICIAL MISCONDUCT

946.10 Bribery of public officers and employees. Who-
ever does either of the following is guilty of a Class H felony:

(1) Whoever, with intent to influence the conduct of any pub-
lic officer or public employee in relation to any matter which by
law is pending or might come before the officer or employee in the
officer’s or employee's capacity as such officer or employee or
with intent to induce the officer or employee to do or omit to do
any act in violation of the officer’s or employee’s lawful duty
transfers or promises to the officer or employee or on the officer’s
or employee’s behalf any property or any personal advantage
which the officer or employee is not authorized to receive; or

(2) Any public officer or public employee who directly or
indirectly accepts or offers to accept any property or any personal
advantage, which the officer or employee is not authorized to
receive, pursuant to an understanding that the officer or employee
will act in a certain manner in relation to any matter which by law
is pending or might come before the officer or employee in the
officer’s or employee's capacity as such officer or employee or
that the officer or employee will do or omit to do any act in viola-
tion of the officer’s or employee’s lawful duty.

History: 1977 c. 173; 1993 a. 486; 2001 a. 109.
Circumstantial evidence supported an inference that the defendant intended to
E‘::}f{]&u(clr:.‘:':;ﬂ‘; public official’s actions. State v. Rosenfeld, 93 Wis. 2d 325, 286 N.W.2d

A swom juror is a public employee under sub. (2). State v. Sammons, 141 Wis. 2d
833,417 N.w.2d 190 (Ct. App. 1987).

946.11 Special privileges from public utilities.
(1) Whoever does the following is guilty of a Class I felony:
(a) Whoever offers or gives for any purpose to any public offi-
cer or to any person at the request or for the advantage of such offi-
cer any free pass or frank, or any privilege withheld from any per-
son, for the traveling accommodation or transportation of any

CRIMES AGAINST GOVERNMENT AND ITS ADMINISTRA-

Updated 19-20 Wis. Stats. 2

person or property or for the transmission of any message or com-
munication; or

(b) Any public officer who asks for or accepts from any person
or uses in any manner or for any purpose any free pass or frank,
or any privilege withheld from any person for the traveling
accommodation or transportation of any person or property or for
the transmission of any message or communication; or

(c) Any public utility or agent or officer thereof who offers or
gives for any purpose to any public officer or to any person at the
request or for the advantage of such officer, any frank or any privi-
lege withheld from any person for any product or service pro-
duced, transmitted, delivered, furnished or rendered or to be pro-
duced, transmitted, delivered, furnished or rendered by any public
utility, or any free product or service whatsoever; or

(d) Any public officer who asks for or accepts or uses in any
manner or for any purpose any frank or privilege withheld from
any person for any product or service produced, transmitted,
delivered, furnished or rendered by any public utility,

(2) In this section:

(a) “Free pass” means any form of ticket or mileage entitling
the holder to travel over any part of a railroad or other public trans-
portation system and issued to the holder as a gift or in consider-
ation or partial consideration of any service performed or to be
performed by such holder, except that it does not include such
ticket or mileage when issued to an employee of the railroad or
public transportation system pursuant to a contract of employ-
ment and not in excess of the transportation rights of other
employees of the same class and seniority, nor does it include free
transportation to police officers or fire fighters when on duty.

(b) “Privilege” means anything of value not available to the
general public, but does not include compensation or fringe bene-
fits provided as a result of employment by a public utility to a regu-
lar employee or pensioner when the following conditions are sat-
isfied:

1. The regular employee or pensioner is not compensated spe-
cifically for services performed for a purpose related to the elec-
tion or nomination for election of an individual to state or local
office, the recall from or retention in office of an individual hold-
ing a state or local office, or for the purpose of payment of expen-
ses incurred as a result of a recount at an election.

2. The regular employee or pensioner is not compensated in
excess of that provided to other regular employees or pensioners
of like status.

(c) “Public utility” has the meaning designated in s, 196.01 (5)
and includes a telecommunications carrier, as defined in s. 196.01
(8m).

(3) This section does not apply to notaries public and regular
employees or pensioners of a railroad or other public utility who
hold public offices for which the annual compensation is not more
than $300 to whom no passes or privileges are extended beyond
those which are extended to other regular employees or pension-
ers of such corporation.

History: 1975 ¢. 93; 1977 c. 173; 1985 a. 135; 1993 a. 496; 2001 a. 109; 2015 a.
117; 2017 a, 365 5. L11.

946.12 Misconduct in public office. Any public officer or
public employee who does any of the following is guilty of a Class
I felony:

(1) Intentionally fails or refuses to perform a known manda-
tory, nondiscretionary, ministerial duty of the officer’s or employ-
ee’s office or employment within the time or in the manner
required by law; or

(2) In the officer’s or employee’s capacity as such officer or
employee, does an act which the officer or employee knows is in
excess of the officer’s or employee’s lawful authority or which the
officer or employee knows the officer or employee is forbidden by
law to do in the officer’s or employee's official capacity; or

(3) Whether by act of commission or omission, in the officer’s
or employee’s capacity as such officer or employee exercises a

2019-20 Wisconsin Slatutes updated through 2021 Wis. Act 162 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on April 5, 2022. Published and certified under s. 35.18. Changes effective after April

5, 2022, are designated by NOTES. (Published 4-5-22)



Updated 2019-20 Wis, Stats. Published and certified under s. 35.18. April 5, 2022.

3 Updated 19-20 Wis. Stats.

discretionary power in a manner inconsistent with the duties of the
officer’s or employee’s office or employment or the rights of oth-
ers and with intent to obtain a dishonest advantage for the officer
or employee or another; or

(4) In the officer’s or employee’s capacity as such officer or
employee, makes an entry in an account or record book or return,
certificate, report or statement which in a material respect the offi-
cer or employee intentionally falsifies; or

(5) Under color of the officer’s or employee's office or
employment, intentionally solicits or accepts for the performance
of any service or duty anything of value which the officer or
employee knows is greater or less than is fixed by law.

History: 1977 ¢. 173; 1993 a. 486; 2001 a, 109,

Sub. (5) prohibits misconduct in public office with constitutional specificity. Ryan
v. State, 79 Wis. 2d 83, 255 N.W.2d 910 (1977).

Sub. (3) applies to a corrupt act under calor of office and under de facto powers
conferred by practice and usage. A person who is not a public officer may be charged
as a party Lo the erime of official misconduct. State v. Tronca, 84 Wis, 2d 68, 267
N.W.2d 216 (1978).

An on—duty prison guard did not violate sub, (2) by fornicating with a prisoner in
acell. State v. Schmit, 115 Wis. 2d 657, 340 N.W.2d 752 (C1. App. 1983),

Sub. (3) is not unconstitutionally vague. 1t does not fail to give notice that hiving
and directing staff to work on political campaigns on state time with state resources
is # violation. A legislator's duty under this section may be determined by reference
to a variety of sources including the Senate Policy M I, applicable stat and
legislative rules and guidelines, The Senate Policy Manual and senate guidelines
resiricted political campaigning with public resources. State v. Chvala, 2004 WI App
53,271 Wis: 2d 115, 678 N.W.2d 880, 03-0442,

Affirmed. 2005 WI 30, 279 Wis. 2d 216, 693 N.W.,2d 747, 03-0442.

See also State v. Jensen, 2004 WI App 89, 272 Wis, 2d 707, 684 N.W.2d 136,
03-0106.

Affirmed. 2005 W1 31, 279 Wis. 2d 220, 694 N.W.2d 56, 03-0106,

Sub. (3) regulites conduct and not speech and is not subject to an overbreadth chal-
lenge under the Ist amendment. Legislators or their employees are not prohibited
from doing or saying anything related to participation in polifical campaigns so long
as they do not use state resources for that purpose. Legitimate legislative activity is
not constrained by this statute. The line between “legislative activity" and “political
dctivity™ is sufficiently clear to prevent any confusion as to what conduct is prohibited
under this statute, State v. Chvala, 2004 W1 App 53, 271 Wis. 2d 115,678 N.W.2d
880, 030442,

Affirmed. 2005 WI 30, 279 Wis. 2d 216, 693 N.W,2d 747, 030442,

See also State v, Jensen, 2004 WI App 89, 272 Wis, 2d 707, 684 N.W.2d 136,
03-0106.

Affirmed. 2005 WI 31, 279 Wis. 2d 220, 694 N.W.2d 56, 03-0106.

Enforcement of sub, (3) against a legislator does not violate the separation of pow-
ers doctrine. Enforcement does not require the courts to enforce legislative rules gov-
eming the enactment of legislation. Rather, the courts are nsked to enforce 4 penal
statute that relates to the duties of a legislator. A court may interpret an internal legis-
lative rule to determine criminal lability if, when applied to the facts of the specific
case, the rule is not ambiguous. State v. Chvala, 2004 WI App 53, 271 Wis, 2d 115,
678 N.W.2d 880, 030442,

Affirmed. 2005 W1 30, 279 Wis, 2d 216, 693 N.W.2d 747, 030442,

See also State v. Jensen, 2004 WI App 89, 272 Wis, 2d 707, 684 N.W.2d 136,
03-0106.

Aftirmed. 2005 W1 31, 279 Wis, 2d 220, 694 N.W,2d 56, 03-0106.

Sub, (3) provides, as separate elements of the erime, the reqjuirement that the con-
duct be inconsistent with the duties of one's office and the requirement that the con-
duct be done with intent (o obtain a dishonest advantage. Although both elements
may be proved through the same transaction, there must nevertheless be proof as to
both elements. The state is required to prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the
defendant exercised his or her discretionary power with the purpose to abtain a dis-
honest advantage. Guilt of misconduct in office does not require the defendant to
have acted corruptly. State v. Jensen, 2007 WI App 256, 06-2005. See also State v,
Schultz, 2007 WI App 257, 306 Wis. 2d 598, 743 N.W.2d 823, 06-2121,

946.13 Private interest in public contract prohibited.
(1) Any public officer or public employee who does any of the
following is guilty of a Class I felony:

(a) In the officer’s or employee’s private capacity, negotiates
or bids for or enters into a contract in which the officer or
employee has a private pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, if at
the same time the officer or employee is authorized or required by
law to participate in the officer’s or employee's capacity as such
officer or employee in the making of that contract or to perform
in regard to that contract some official function requiring the exer-
cise of discretion on the officer’s or employee's part; or

(b) In the officer’s or employee’s capacity as such officer or
employee, participates in the making of a contract in which the
officer or employee has a private pecuniary interest, direct or indi-
rect, or performs in regard to that contract some function requiring
the exercise of discretion on the officer’s or employee’s part.

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply to any of the following:

CRIMES AGAINST GOVERNMENT AND ITS ADMINISTRA-

946.13
TION

(a) Coniracts in which any single public officer or employee
is privately interested that do not involve receipts and disburse-
ments by the state or its political subdivision aggregating more
than $15,000 in any year.

(b) Contracts involving the deposit of public funds in public
depositories,

(c) Contracts involving loans made pursuant to s. 67.12.

(d) Contracts for the publication of legal notices required to be
published, provided such notices are published at a rate not higher
than that prescribed by law.

(e) Contracts for the issuance to a public officer or employee
of tax titles, tax certificates, or instruments representing an inter-
est in, or secured by, any fund consisting in whole or in part of
taxes in the process of collection, provided such titles, certificates,
or instruments are issued in payment of salary or other obligations
due such officer or employee.

(f) Contracts for the sale of bonds or securities issued by a
political subdivision of the state; provided such bonds or securi-
ties are sold at a bona fide public sale to the highest bidder and the
public officer or employee acquiring the private interest has no
duty to vote upon the issuance of the bonds or securities.

(g) Contracts with, or tax credits or payments received by, pub-
lic officers or employees for wildlife damage claims or abatement
under s. 29.889, for farmland preservation under s. 91.13, 2007
stats., or s, 91.60 or subch, IX of ch. 71, soil and water resource
management under s. 92.14, soil erosion control under s. 92.10,
1985 stats., animal waste management under s. 92,15, 1985 stats.,
and nonpoint source water pollution abatement under s. 281.65,

(3) A contract entered into in violation of this section is void
and the state or the political subdivision in whose behalf the con-
tract was made incurs no liability thereon.

(4) In this section “contract” includes a conveyance.

(5) Subsection (1) (b) shall not apply to a public officer or pub-
lic employee by reason of his or her holding not more than 2 per-
cent of the outstanding capital stock of a corporate body involved
in such contract,

(6) Subsection (3) shall not apply to contracts crealing a public
debt, as defined in s. 18.01 (4), if the requirements of s. 18.14 (1)
have been met. No evidence of indebtedness, as defined in s.
18.01 (3), shall be invalidated on account of a violation of this sec-
tion by a public officer or public employee, but such officer or
employee and the surety on the officer’s or employee’s official
bond shall be liable to the state for any loss to it occasioned by such
violation.

(7) Subsection (1) shall not apply to any public officer or pub-
lic employee, who receives compensation for the officer’s or
employee’s services as such officer or employee, exclusive of
advances or reimbursements for expenses, of less than $10,000
per year, merely by reason of his or her being a director, officer,
employee, agent or attorney of or for a state or national bank, sav-
ings bank or trust company, or any holding company thereof, This
subsection shall not apply to any such person whose compensa-
tion by such financial institution is directly dependent upon pro-
curing public business. Compensation determined by longevity,
general quality of work or the overall performance and condition
of such financial institution shall not be deemed compensation
directly dependent upon procuring public business,

(8) Subsection (1) shall not apply to contracts or transactions
made or consummated or bonds issued under s. 66,1103,

(9) Subsection (1) does not apply to the member of a local
committee appointed under s, 289.33 (7) (a) acting as a member
of that committee in negotiation, arbitration or ratification of
agreements under s, 289.33.

(10) Subsection (1) (a) does not apply to a member of a local
workforce development board established under 29 USC 2832 or
to a member of the council on workforce investment established
under 29 USC 2821.

2019-20 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2021 Wis. Act 162 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on April 5, 2022. Published and certified under s. 35.18. Changes effective after April

5, 2022, are designated by NOTES. (Published 4-5-22)



Updated 2019-20 Wis, Stats. Published and certified under s. 35.18. April 5, 2022.

946.13
TION

(11) Subsection (1) does not apply to an individual who
receives compensation for services as a public officer or public
employee of less than $10,000 annually, exclusive of advances or
reimbursements for expenses, merely because that individual is a
partner, shareholder or employee of a law firm that serves as legal
counsel to the public body that the officer or employee serves,
unless one of the following applies:

(a) The individual has an interest in that law firm greater than
2 percent of its net profit or loss.

(b) The individual participates in making a contract between
that public body and that law firm or exercises any official discre-
tion with respect to a contract between them.

(¢) The individual’s compensation from the law firm directly
depends on the individual’s procurement of business with public
bodies.

(12) () In this subsection:

1. “Research company” means an entity engaged in commer-
cial or nonprofit activity that is related to research conducted by
an employee or officer of the system or to a product of such
research.

2. “System” means the University of Wisconsin System.

(b) Subsection (1) does not apply to a contract between a
research company and the system or any institution or college
campus within the system for purchase of goods or services,
including research, if the interest that a system employee or officer
has in the research company has been evaluated and addressed in
a management plan issued by the individual or body responsible
for evaluating and managing potential conflicts of interest and the
management plan complies with the policy adopted under par. (d).

(d) The board shall adopt a policy specifying the contents
required for a management plan under par. (b).

History: 1971 c. 405.93; 1973 ¢, 125 37; 1973 ¢. 50, 265; 1977 ¢. 166, 173: 1983
a. 282; 1987 a. 344, 378, 399; 1989 a, 31,232; 1993 a, 486; 1995 7. 27, 225, 227, 435;
1997 u. 35, 248; 1999 o, 9, 85; 1999 1, 150 5, 672; 2001 a. 109; 2005 &, 417; 2000 .
28; 2019 u. 36.

A county bowd member did not violate sub. (1) by accepting a job #s airport man-
ager while he was serving as a county board member for a county that was co—owner
of the airport when he was appointed pursuant to advice and approval of the county
corporation counsel. State v. Davis, 63 Wis. 2d 75, 216 N.W.2d 31 (1974),

Sub. (1) (b) is a strict liability offense. It does not include the element of corrupt
motive. State v. Stochr, 134 Wis, 2d 66, 396 N.W.2d 177 (1986).

The defendant could not have had a pecuniary interest in, or have negotinted in his
private capacity for, a position that had not yet been posted. State v. Venema, 2002
WI App 202, 257 Wis. 2d. 491, 650 N, W.2d 898, 01-2502.

A county board member employed by an engineering and survey firm may have
a possible conflict of interest in public contracts. 60 Atty. Gen, 98.

A member of the Wisconsin board of vocational, technical and adult education
[now Technical college] may not bid on and contract for the construction of' a building
project for a vocational-technical district that would entail expenditures exeeeding
$2,000 in any year, when availability of federal funds for use on such project is subject
to his approval as 1 member of the board. 60 Aty Gen, 310,

Discussing conflicts arising from election of a school principal to the office of
alderperson. 60 Atty. Gen. 367,

Appointment of counsel for indigents involves a public contract, 62 Atty. Gen.

18.

A county supervisor who is a pharmacist probably does not violate this section in
furnishing prescription services to medicaid patients when the state is solely liable for
payment. 64 Atty. Gen. 108,

The marital property law does not change the applicability of this section to & mem-
ber of a governmental body when that body employs the member’s spouse. 76 Ally.
Gen, 15,

This section applies to county board or depariment purchases aggregating more
than $5,000 from a county supervisor—owned business. 76 Auty. Gen, 178,

When the village board administers a community development block grant pro-
gram, 4 member of the village board would violate this section if he or she obtained
a loan in excess of $5,000 under the program. Acting as a private contractor, the board
member would violate sub. (1) if he contracted to perform the construction work for
a third person who obtained a loan under the program. 76 Atty. Gen, 278,

Sub. (1) (a) may be violated by members of the Private Industry Councils when
private or public entities of which they are executives, directors, or board members
receive benefits under the Job Training Partnership Act. 77 Ay, Gen. 306,

A municipality's zoning decision is not a contract under sub, (1) {a), and therefore
the statute does not apply 1o an official’s participation in a zoning decision, OAG
9-14

946.14 Purchasing claims at less than full value. Any
public officer or public employee who in a private capacity

CRIMES AGAINST GOVERNMENT AND ITS ADMINISTRA-

Updated 19-20 Wis. Stats. 4

directly or indirectly intentionally purchases for less than full
value or discounts any claim held by another against the state or
a political subdivision thereof or against any public fund is guilty
of a Class I felony.

History: 1977 ¢. 173; 2001 a. 109.

946.16 Judicial officer collecting claims. Any judicial
officer who causes to be brought in a court over which the officer
presides any action or proceeding upon a claim placed with the
officer as agent or attorney for collection is guilty of a Class B mis-
demeanor,

History: 1977 ¢. 173,

946.17 Corrupt means to influence legislation; disclo-
sure of interest. Any person who gives or agrees or offers to
give anything of value to any person, for the service of such person
or of any other person in procuring the passage or defeat of any
measure before the legislature or before either house or any com-
mittee thereof, upon the contingency or condition of the passage
or defeat of the measure, or who receives, or agrees to receive any-
thing of value for such service, upon any such contingency or con-
dition, or who, having a pecuniary or other interest, or acting as
the agent or attorney of any person in procuring or attempting to
procure the passage or defeat of any measure before the legislature
or before either house or any committee thereof, attempts in any
manner to influence any member of the legislature for or against
the measure, without first making known to the member the real
and true interest he or she has in the measure, either personally or
as such agent or attorney, is guilty of a class A misdemeanor,
History: 1977 ¢. 278 5. 1; Stats, 1977 5. 946.17; 1993 a, 213,

946.18 Misconduct sections apply to all public offi-

cers. Sections 946.10 to 946.17 apply to public officers, whether

legally constituted or exercising powers as if legally constituted.
History: 1977 c. 278; 1979 ¢. 110.

SUBCHAPTER III
PERJURY AND FALSE SWEARING

946.31 Perjury. (1) Whoever under oath or affirmation
orally makes a false material statement which the person does not
believe to be true, in any matter, cause, action or proceeding,
before any of the following, whether legally constituted or exer-
cising powers as if legally constituted, is guilty of a Class H fel-
ony:

(a) A court;

(b) A magistrate;

(c) A judge, referee or court commissioner;

(d) An administrative agency or arbitrator authorized by stat-
ute to determine issues of fact;

(e) A notary public while taking testimony for use in an action
or proceeding pending in court;

(f) An officer authorized to conduct inquests of the dead;
(g) A grand jury;
(h) A legislative body or committee.

(2) Itis not a defense to a prosecution under this section that
the perjured testimony was corrected or retracted.

History: 1977 ¢. 173; 1979 ¢. 110; 2001 a, 109,

An arbitrator selected from a list provided by the Wisconsin Employment Rela-
tions Commission is authorized by s. 111,10 to arbitrate as provided in ¢h. 298 [now
ch. 788] and so is “suthorized by statute™ within meaning of sub. (1) (d). Layton
School of Art & Design v, WERC, 82 Wis, 2d 324, 262 N.W.2d 218 (1978).

Perjury consists of a false statement that the defendant knew was false, was made
under oath in & proceeding before a judge, and was material to the proceeding. Mate-
riality is determined by whether the trisl court could have relied on the testimony in
making i decision, not on whether it actoally did. State v. Munz, 198 Wis, 2d 379,
541 N.W.2d 821 (Ct. App. 1995), 95-0635,

2019-20 Wisconsin Statutes updated through 2021 Wis. Act 162 and through all Supreme Court and Controlled Substances
Board Orders filed before and in effect on April 5, 2022. Published and certified under s. 35.18. Changes effective after April

5, 2022, are designated by NOTES. (Published 4-5-22)



Chapter 1 - General Government Operations

PART | - GENERAL

1.01 RECEIPT OF GIFTS AND GRATUITIES.
(1) No County employee or official shall:

(a) Receive or offer to receive, either directly or indirectly, any gift, gratuity, or other thing of
substantial value, for the private benefit of the employee or official or his immediate family, from
any person, corporation, organization, or entity which:

1. has obtained or is seeking to obtain contractual or other business, or financial relationships,
with Winnebago County or its departments, agencies, or boards; or

2. conducts operations or activities which are regulated or subsidized by Winnebago County, its
departments, boards, or committees.

(b) For purposes of this ordinance, “substantial value” shall be presumed to include any gift, gratuity,
or other item with an aggregate value of $25 or greater. “Substantial value” does not include
promotional trinkets of de minimus value such as pens, pencils, keychains, etc., nor does it include
refreshments such as coffee, soda, pastries, juice, etc., provided as a matter of societal etiguette.

(c) For purposes of this ordinance, an “official” is defined as one holding a “local public office” as
defined in § 19.42(7w), Wis Stats.

(d} For purposes of this ordinance, “immediate family” is as defined in § 19.42(7}, Wis Stats.

(2) Should an official of Winnebago County knowingly be prohibited from partaking in any official action by
virtue of § 19.59(1)(c), Wis Stats., said official shall notify the Winnebago County Clerk of said
prohibition in writing no later than ten (10) days after learning of said prohibition and the reasons
therefore.

(3) Penalty: Violation of this ordinance shall be punishable under Section 25.04 of the General Code of
Winnebago County,

(4) Candidates Seeking Public Office: Nothing herein shall prevent any County employee or official, as a
candidate for public office, from accepting money, property, or other things of value as a campaign
contribution pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 12, Wis Stats

1.11 FEES AND LEGAL CUSTODIANS: PUBLIC RECORDS.

(1) Authority: This section of the Code is adopted under the authority granted by§§ 59.52 and 19.35(3),

Wis Stats. @

TABLE OF
EoutEnn

Revised 11/21/2017



(1)

25.04

Chapter 25 — Construction and Effect of Ordinances

Whenever in this Code any standard, code, rule, regulation or other written or printed matter is
adopted by reference, it shall be deemed incorporated in this Code as if fully set forth herein and
the County Clerk shall file, deposit and keep in his office a copy of the Code, standard, rule,
regulation or other written or printed matter as adopted. Materials so filed, deposited and kept
shall be public records open for examination with proper care by any person during the County
Clerk’s office hours, subject to such orders or regulations which the County Clerk may prescribe for
their preservation.

PENALTY PROVISIONS

(1)

(a)

(b)

()

(2)

General Penalty. Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this Code for which a
penalty for such violation has not been provided otherwise in the Chapter in which the
provision is found, or in Appendix A of Chapter 25, which is incorporated herein by reference
and made a part of this Chapter herein, shall, upon conviction of such violation, be subject to a
penalty which shall be as follows:

First Offense Penalty: $100 together with the costs of prosecution and any statutory surcharges
as established pursuant to § 814.61, Wis Stats, by the Wisconsin Legislature. Any person
convicted of a violation, who shall default on payment of such forfeiture and costs of
prosecution and statutory surcharges, shall be imprisoned in the County Jail until such
forfeiture and costs are paid, but not exceeding 90 days.

Second Offense Penafty: Any person found guilty of violating any ordinance or part of an
ordinance of this Code who was previously convicted of a violation of the same ordinance
within one (1) year and for which a penalty for such violation has not been provided in the
Chapter in which the provision is found or in Appendix A to this Chapter shall, upon conviction
thereof, forfeit $250 for each such offense, together with costs of prosecution and statutory
surcharges and in default of payment of such forfeiture and costs shall be imprisoned in the
County Jail until such forfeiture and costs of prosecution and statutory surcharges are paid, but
not exceeding 6 months.

Juvenile Offenses: Notwithstanding any other Code provision, except for those offenses related
to the possession or sale of alcohol and tobacco products, all forfeitures for violation of any
Section of this Code wherein the individual violating the Code is 12 years of age or under, shall
be $55.00.

(d) Court Costs and Surcharges: Court costs, penalty surcharges, jail surcharges, crime lab and
drug surcharges, court support surcharges, justice information surcharges, and any other
surcharges adopted by the Wisconsin Legislature pursuant to § 814.61, Wis Stats, shall
automatically take effect, as they relate to any violations of the General Code of
Winnebago County, upon the effective date of said surcharges without any further action
by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors,

Continued Violations. Each violation and each day a violation continues or occurs shall

constitute a separate offense. Nothing in this Code shall preclude the County from maintaining

any appropriate action to prevent or remove a violation of any provision of this Code. 6
\H)

TABLE OF

Revised 10/18/11

CONTINTS



Chapter 25 — Construction and Effect of Ordinances

(3) Execution Against Defendant’s Property. Whenever any person fails to pay any forfeiture and
costs of prosecution upon the order of any court for violation of any ordinance of the County,
the court may, in lieu of ordering imprisonment of the defendant, or after the defendant has
been released from custody, issue an execution against the property of the defendant for such
forfeiture and costs.

(4) Citation Method of Enforcement. Citations may be issued for violations of this General Code.

(a) The issuance of citations is expressly limited to the following County officials and
employees except as otherwise herein stated, and the authority delegated to a County
official or employee or city, village, or town law enforcement officer to issue such citations
may only be granted or revoked by the County Board:

1.

The County Zoning Administrator and such subordinates as he may delegate.
Any County law enforcement officer.
Landfill Superintendent and Scale Operator(s).

As to violations of Chapters 9 (Public Peace and Good Order) and Chapter 19 (Parks and
Waters) of the Winnebago County General Code, by any duly appointed city, village, or
town law enforcement officer of the municipality or town within Winnebago County
wherein a violation of a Winnebago County ordinance occurs.

A designation of the offense in such manner as can readily be understood by a person
making a reasonable effort to do so.

The time at which the alleged violator may appear in court.
A statement which in essence informs the alleged violator:

a. That a cash deposit based on the schedule established by the County Board from
time to time and on file in the Office of the County Clerk may be made which shall
be delivered or mailed to the Clerk of Circuit Court Branch V prior to the time of the
scheduled court appearance.

b. That if a deposit is made, no appearance in court is necessary unless he is
subsequently summoned.

¢. Thatifa cash deposit is made and the alleged violator does not appear in court, he
will be deemed to have entered a plea of no contest, or, if the court does not
accept the plea of no contest, a summons will be issued commanding him to
appear in court to answer the complaint.

d. That if no cash deposit is made and the alleged violator does not appear in court at
the time specified, an action may be commenced to collect the forfeiture. @
N

Revised 10/18/11

TABLE OF
5 CONTENTS



Chapter 25 — Construction and Effect of Ordinances

8. Adirection that if the alleged violator elects to make a cash deposit, the statement
which accompanies the citation shall be signed to indicate that the statement required
above has been read. Such statement shall be sent or brought with the cash deposit.

9. Such other information as the County deems necessary.
a. (Omitted)

b. §66.0113, Wis. Stats. relating to violators’ options
and procedure on default is adopted and incorporated herein by reference.

¢. Adoption of this section does not preclude the County Board from adopting any
other ordinance or providing for the enforcement of any other law or ordinance
relating to the same or other matters.

10. The Director of the Land and Water Conservation Department and such subordinates
as he may delegate for the purpose of enforcement of Chapter 13, § 15.52, and § 17.31
of this Code.

25.05 REPEAL OF GENERAL ORDINANCES

All Ordinances heretofore adopted by the County Board and which are not included in this Code in form
or by reference, except all ordinances or parts thereof relating to the following, are hereby repealed
subject to the provisions of Sect. 25.06 of this Code.

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)

The issuance of bonds and notes of the County of whatever name or description.
Additions or deletions to Federal, State, and County highway systems.

Rights, licenses, or franchises, or the creation of any contract with the County.

The fixing of salaries of public officials and employees.

The naming and changing of names of highways, public grounds, buildings, and parks.
Tax and special assessment levies,

Construction of public works.

Budget ordinances, resolutions, and actions.

25.06 EFFECT OF REPEALS

The repeal or amendment of any section or provision of this Code or of any other ordinances or
resolutions of the County Board shall not: ;@

TABLE DF

Revised 10/18/11

CONTENTS



Revised 11-19-2019 Winnebago County Human Resources Policy Manual

(b) The prohibition from possessing dangerous weapons during work time does not apply
to any employee who is authorized by the Winnebago County Executive, the Winnebago
County Sheriff, or the Winnebago County District Attorney.

Policy 08 Conflicts of Interest

8.01 County Office or Position

No County employee may use his or her office or position for personal financial gain or for
financial gain of the employee’s family. “Financial gain” for purposes of the preceding
sentence does not include compensation and benefits provided directly to the employee by the
County.

No employee may handle work-related matters involving current or former family members
or close friends without advance approval of the employee’s department head.

No employee may engage in business activity, accept private employment, or render setvices
for private interests when such business activity, employment, or service would: interfere
with the employee’s ability to fulfill all requirements and expectations of the employee’s
County position; impair the employee’s judgment with respect to County duties; cause
potential confusion as to whether services are being provided on behalf of the County or on
behalf of a private concern; or cause negative publicity for the County.

8.02 Gifts and Gratuities

No County employee shall solicit or accept for himself or another person any gift, gratuity,
favor, service or promise of future employment, entertainment, loan or any other thing of
substantial monetary value from a person who has or is seeking contractual or other business
activities from the County or which are regulated by the County. This does not include
acceptance of loans from banks or other financial institutions on customary terms of financing
for personal use (such as home mortgage loans) and the acceptance of unsolicited advertising
or promotional materials, such as pens and calendars, and acceptance of an award for
meritorious public or personal contributions or achievements.

8.03 Nepotism

(a) Prohibition. No employee may directly or indirectly supervise, or be in a position that
exercises any supervisory or budgetary authority over, any other employee who is a “relative”
or a “significant other.” No employee may participate in any way in the selection process of
a new employee if one of the applicants for the position is a “relative” or “significant other”
of the employee.

(b) Definitions. For purposes of this provision, a “relative” includes a spouse or any one
of the following: parent, child, stepchild, uncle, aunt, brother, sister, niece, nephew of the
employee or of the employee’s spouse. A person is an employee’s "significant other" if the
employee cohabits or maintains an intimate relationship with the person. An employee
exercises supervisory authority over another employee if a supervisory relationship exists

12



Winnebago County Human Resources Policy Manual Revised 11-19-2019

through any line of authority extending vertically through one or more organizational levels
of supervision or management.

(©) Relationships Occurring During Employment. If during the course of employment one
employee becomes a “relative” or “significant other” of another employee so as to violate the
terms of Policy 08.02(a), one of the parties must either transfer to a position in another
department or work unit or terminate employment within six months. Employees are required
to report the existence of any such relationship to a professional Human Resources
Department professional staff member within thirty calendar days of the start of the
relationship.

The department head and the Director of Human Resources or their designees may meet with
the employees involved to determine an appropriate employment continuation arrangement.
If another resolution is not agreed to, the County will transfer or terminate the employee who
has been continuously employed by the County for a shorter period.

(d)  Exception and Waiver. This policy does not apply to those supervisor/subordinate
relationships which existed between related employees prior to April 1, 2008. The provisions
of this policy may be waived on a case-by-case basis by the County Executive upon the advice
and consent of the Director of Human Resources.

8.04 Political Activity

Employees are free to engage in political activity as private citizens on their own time and
using their own resources. Employees are prohibited, however, from engaging in political
activity while on work time or with the use of any County equipment, office space, property,
communications systems, or any other resources. Political activity includes soliciting
signatures or services for political purposes, making political contributions, circulating
campaign literature or advertising, directly or indirectly inducing others to contribute money
or other assistance to any political candidate, party, discouraging others from engaging in
political activity, making telephone calls or sending emails for political purposes, and other
actions intended to facilitate political or campaign activities.

8.05 Solicitations

No employee or group of employees may solicit at any County facility funds or other things
of value from firms, persons, or corporations or other organizations without first obtaining a
written permit from the County Board committee or committees having jurisdiction over the
facility in which the solicitation is to occur, over the department employing the persons
conducting the solicitation, and over the department having employees or members of the
public being solicited.

No approval is required for the annual United Way campaign or for passive solicitations (sign-
up sheets left in a break room) for youth group fundraisers. The rights of employees to not
contribute to any solicitation are protected. No employee will suffer any adverse consequence
as the result of a contribution decision.

13



Winnebago County Human Resources Policy Manual Revised 11-19-2019

elsewhere, should bring those concerns to the attention of his or her supervisor or, if the employee
believes that the supervisor is implicated in those concemns, to the attention of the supervisor’s
supervisor.

7.02 Safety Concerns

Management and subordinate employees alike have mutual responsibility to maintain a safe
work environment. Any employee who has safety concerns should bring the matter to the
attention of a supervisor as soon as reasonably possible. Any supervisor who becomes aware of
any safety concern should either investigate in a timely manner or make sure that other
management staff are doing so, take corrective action where warranted, and respond in a timely
fashion to employees who raised the concern.

The provision of Policy 7.01 requiring an employee to comply with a work order or directive
does not apply if doing so would seriously jeopardize the health or safety of the employee or of
others.

7.03 Sexual Harassment

(a) Definition and Prohibition. Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcomed sexual
advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature
when:

1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an
individual’s employment;

2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for
employment decisions affecting such individual; or

3. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's
work performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment.

Sexual harassment on the job is prohibited whether it is initiated by a supervisor, co-worker,
subordinate, client, customer, vendor or elected official.

()  Reporting Responsibility. Any employee who experiences sexual harassment or other
discrimination on the job should report the harassment or other discrimination as soon as
possible to any professional staff member of the Department of Human Resources.
Supervisors or department heads who become aware of any incident of sexual harassment or
other discrimination are required to report such incidents to the Human Resources Department
as soon as possible. In the event that the harassment or other discrimination:involves any
employee of the Human Resources, the harassment or other discrimination should be reported
as soon as possible to the County Executive.

The Human Resources Department, or such other person as may be designated by the County
Executive, will initiate an investigation into any report of sexual harassment or other
discrimination as soon as reasonably practicable



Revised 11-19-2019 Winnebago County Human Resources Policy Manual

(c) Non-Retaliation. Employees and others should feel free to report harassment or other
discrimination. Any employee who retaliates against another who reports harassment or other
discrimination, or who retaliates against another who cooperates with an investigation into
such matters, will be subject to disciplinary action, which may include termination of
employment.

7.04 Alcohol and Drug Use
(a) Use of Drugs and Alcohol. County employees may not:

1. Be under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs at any time during working hours.
2. Sell, possess, transfer, or purchase illegal drugs at any time.

3. Consume alcohol or illegal drugs on duty, including any paid or unpaid lunch periods or
breaks during the normal work day. This provision does not prohibit consumption of alcohol
after normal working hours while at conferences, seminars, or training sessions.

4. Use or be under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs in any amount when using a County
vehicle, whether on or off duty.

5. Report for duty or remain on duty when the employee uses any controlled substance, or any
prescription or non-prescription medication, if such use adversely affects the employee’s
ability to safely and competently perform his or her job. Employees must report to their
supervisors before starting work when they take any medication that might affect their senses,
motor ability, judgment, reflexes, or otherwise affect their ability to perform their jobs.

(b)  Reasonable Suspicion. In the event that a reasonable suspicion exists that an employee
may be using or under the influence of any drug, including alcohol, during duty hours to the
extent that his or her ability to perform his or her duties may appear to be impaired, a
supervisor should attempt to have the suspicion confirmed by another supervisor, a Human
Resources member, or other responsible employee. A Human Resources professional staff
member should be contacted before taking further action if reasonably possible.

Should a supervisor or Human Resources decide that an employee must undergo a drug or
alcohol test, a member of management, a Human Resources professional staff member, or an
employee of the Sheriff’s Office will drive the employee to the testing site and back to the work
site. Testing may be provided directly by the Sheriff’s Office. Should the test results be non-
negative, inconclusive, or unavailable, the employee will be permitted to contact a legally
eligible adult for transportation home.

If an employee refuses the test or fails to cooperate with the procedure, disciplinary action
will be considered in at least the level that would be considered if there had been a test
producing a positive result.

(©) Licensing Requirements. Employees required to possess a Commercial Driver’s
License, subject to other licensing requirements, or who work in a safety-sensitive position

10



2022-2024 RULES OF THE
WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

1.0 TIME AND MEETING PLACE

1.1 The meetings of the County Board shall be held in the Board of Supervisors' Room at 6:00 p.m.
on the third Tuesday of the month. When an election falls on the third Tuesday of the month, the County Board
meeting shall be held on the fourth Tuesday of the month. This Rule may be waived by the County Board
Chairperson as a result of a local, state, or national declared emergency.

1.2 The Board shall be in continuous session from day to day until adjournment to a day certain or
sine die.

2.0 ORIENTATION MEETING

21 Orientation Meeting information shall be presented every two years following the election of a
new county board. The Chair shall present an orientation meeting with an explanation of the work of the Board
and the manner in which it functions, the appointment of committee membership, the projects of various
departments, long-range planning, and the status of various projects of the Board. He/she may ask for the help
of the committee chairs or department heads in making such explanation.

2.2 The County Clerk shall make an explanation of procedure and the manner in which votes are
taken and in particular the method of use of the electronic voting machine.

2.3 The Corporation Counsel shall also address the Board on the functions of his or her office, and
shall present the Ethics Handbook.

24 The Human Resources Director will explain the personnel forms required by that office.

25 The Chair of the Judiciary & Public Safety Committee will explain the County Board rules. In
the absence of a Chair of the Judiciary & Public Safety Committee, the Corporation Counsel will explain
the County Board Rules.

3.0 ORGANIZATION MEETING

3.1 At the statutory Organization Meeting to be held in April of even-numbered years, it shall be the
duty of the County Clerk to call the County Board to order. The Clerk shall call the roll and establish presence of
a quorum and proceed with the preliminary ceremonies.

3.2 No resolutions or ordinances shall be considered at the Organization Meeting, except those
relating to rules.

3.3 A quorum being present, the Board shall proceed to the election of the Chair and Vice Chair.
Election of the Chair and Vice-Chair shall be by a majority vote of those members present. Should no
supervisor gain a majority vote of those members present for either position, the lowest vote-getter shall be
deleted from each subsequent ballot until only two candidates for the position remain on the ballot.

34 The Chair shall appoint a Committee on Committees to advise the Chair in selection of
committee members. The Committee on Committees shall consist of five (5) Board members. The Committee
on Committees shall, when making recommendations for committee assignments, make every effort to
distribute committee assignments between supervisors, keeping in mind varying levels of responsibility and time
commitments related to various committee assignments.

3.5 The proposed rules of the new Board shall be made available to the Board membership prior to
the Organization Meeting.

3.6 There shall be an explanation of the present and proposed rules of the County Board.

3.7 The proposed rules of the Board shall be presented and rules adopted at the Organization
Meeting of even-numbered years by a majority vote.

3.8 The Rules of the Board shall be amended during the two-year period only by a two-thirds vote
of those present at a meeting, except at the Annual Organizational Meeting, at which time a majority of those
present shall rule. This Rule may be waived by the County Board Chairperson as a result of a local, state, or
national declared emergency.

3.9 After the adoption of the Rules of the Board and other activities as noted in 3.0 through 3.8, the
County Board Chairman may make interim appointments to County Board Committees, pending the recessed
Organization Meeting, if the business of government so requires. The Board shall recess that Organization
Meeting to the following Tuesday.

3.10 The Board, as the first order of business at the recessed meeting of the Organization Meeting
shall officially approve all committee members by a majority vote of those present.

3.11  Atthe recessed meeting of the Organization Meeting, all members of each committee shall
then meet for one-half hour to select committee officers and then report the results of such elections to the
Board as a whole.

3.12  Any committee may, if the Committee membership so decides, postpone election of committee
officers for not more than one month.




3.13  After the Organization meetings, should a committee vacancy occur, or the need arises to
adjust a standing committee, then the County Board Chair shall make appointments to fill the vacancy or adjust
the committee’'s membership.

3.14  Between the Organization Meeting and the first regular session, the Chair shall be authorized to
conduct an emergency committee meeting with any of the former members of that committee.

4.0 BUDGET SESSION/ANNUAL MEETING

4.1 The procedures to be followed during the budget session and calendar year (except as stated in
4.2, 4.3 and 4.4) shall be:

1. Open each meeting during the budget session with time allowed for a public hearing.

4.2 The first public hearing, as required by law, on the proposed annual budget shall be held at 6:00
p-m. or as soon as possible thereafter on the date selected.

43 The Finance Director shall report to the Board any errors in the budget. The corrections shall
be made prior to the presentation of any amendments. The Board shall by a majority vote accept the report of
the Finance Director to correct the errors in the Budget.

4.4 Proposed changes in the Annual Budget shall be submitted in the form of amendments to the
resolution.

4.5 After all proposed amendments to the Budget Resolution have been considered by the Board,
the Budget Resolution, as amended, shall be voted upon by the Board.

5.0 POWERS OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR

51 The Chair of the County Board, or in his/her absence the Vice-Chair, shall take the Chair at the
hour to which the Board may from time to time stand adjourned, or recessed, or continued, call the Board to
order and direct the calling of the roll by the Clerk.

5.2 In absence of both the Chair and Vice-Chair, the County Clerk shall preside until a Chair Pro-
Tem is elected.

5.3 The Chair shall be responsible for the preparation and order of the written agenda of the County
Board as assisted by the County Clerk and Corporation Counsel.

5.4 The Chair shall act as ex officio member of all committees of the County Board and, as ex
officio committee member, shall have power to vote in such committee in the absence of a committee member.
The Chair may delegate this power to the Vice-Chair.

5.5 The Chair shall receive $5,000 per year, plus per diem. The Vice-Chair shall receive $1,500 per
year, plus per diem.

5.6 The Chair shall receive all requests and communications not specifically addressed to any
committee or official of the County and refer such matter to the appropriate committee or official.

5.7 The Chair shall be entitled to vote on all questions before the Board.

5.8 When the Chair wishes to participate in the debate on a matter before the Board, the Chair shall
relinquish the Chair to the Vice Chair (if the Vice Chair has or wishes to participate in the debate, then any
Supervisor not participating in the debate shall be selected, by the Chair, to act as Chair until the matter is
resolved by the Board) prior to participating in the debate, except at the Organizational meeting.

5.9 The County Board Chair shall advise in writing all members of the Board of the Chair's
recommendations for Committee membership.

5.10 The Chair's appointment to fill a County Board vacancy shall be listed in the written agenda.

5.11  The Chair's appointment to fill a County Board vacancy shall be made not later than 60 days
after the vacancy occurs.

6.0 ORDER OF BUSINESS

6.1 The Order of Business shall be as follows:

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

C. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

D. Prayer

E. Approval and correction of minutes of the previous meeting

F. Communications, Petitions, Memorials, Accounts, Etc.

G. Reports of Committee, Commissions and Boards

H. Adopt Written Agenda

l. Public Comments

J. Report of the County Executive (optional)

K. Confirmation of County Executive and County Board Chair appointments
L. County Board Chair's Report

M. Presentation of Resolutions and Ordinances previously tabled or laid over to a day certain, and

disposition of same



N. Presentation of new Resolutions and Ordinances and disposition of same

0. Consideration of miscellaneous business

P. Adjournment

6.2 The Roll Call shall be made by use of the voting machine, or in the event of malfunction, by roll
call of the County Clerk.

6.3 Monthly Reports of Committees, Commissions and Boards of the County Board may be made
in writing, said reports to be included in the agenda packet mailed, or otherwise delivered, to each Board
Member.

6.4 Public comments will be heard by the Board at an appropriate time in the agenda. The Chair,
within his or her discretion, may set a time limit on speakers when necessary.

6.5 Public comments will be heard by the Board on any matter over which this body has jurisdiction,
including, but not restricted to, those Resolutions and Ordinances on the adopted agenda for that meeting. If a
member of the public raises a subject that does not appear on the meeting agenda, however, no substantive
discussion of that subject shall take place by the Board, and any extensive deliberation regarding that subject
shall be deferred to a later meeting so that more specific notice may be given by placing the subject on the
agenda. In addition, the Board shall not take any formal action on a subject raised in the public comment
period, unless that subject is also identified in the meeting agenda

6.6 A supervisor who is permanently leaving a board meeting prior to adjournment shall inform the

Chair or the County Clerk of that fact prior to leaving the meeting.

7.0 HANDLING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES

71 Every written resolution shall be prepared in block form and shall be as concise as possible and
shall have attached to it the name of the Committee, Commission or Board and/or the names of the
Supervisor(s) introducing it.

7.2 All resolutions that come from Committees, Commissions or Boards shall show the vote of that
Committee, Commission or Board.

7.3 All items to be acted upon by the Board which are included on the adopted agenda may be
referred to by the title and number and need not be read by the Clerk unless requested by a Supervisor.

74 Every motion or amendment shall be reduced to writing if requested by a Supervisor.

7.5 Every resolution having monetary implications shall have a fiscal note attached or included,
and, if applicable, shall contain a cost/benefit analysis.

7.6 Any Committee of Jurisdiction may submit to the County Board a request which has been
rejected by Personnel and Finance Committee. However, this request resolution must have a two-thirds
affirmative vote of the County Board membership for adoption except at the County Board Annual Budget
Session.

7.7 Any resolution that is presented for the purpose of expressing support, opposition, or the desire
for initiation of any state or federal legislation shall require a three-fourths vote of those members present for
passage.

8.0 WRITTEN AGENDA

8.1 Under the direction of the County Board Chair, the County Clerk, with the help of the
Corporation Counsel, is hereby authorized and instructed to prepare a written Agenda for each meeting of the
County Board.

8.2 For an item to be printed on the agenda, it must be presented to the County Clerk's Office no
later than Monday noon of the week prior to the Board meeting. This includes communications and details on if
the meeting will utilize a remote option, such as, by way of example, online meetings.

8.3 This Agenda, along with appropriate attachments, shall be mailed or otherwise deposited for
delivery at least seven (7) days before the Board meeting and must provide the supervisors with all necessary
access information to attend remotely if the remote option is invoked for said meeting.

8.4 After the Agenda has been mailed, an item may be added and an Amended Agenda sent out
only if there would be a negative monetary impact to the County if it waited until the next meeting of the County
Board. If waiting until the next County Board meeting would not negatively impact the County, the item must
wait until the next meeting.

8.5 This Agenda and attachments shall be furnished to any person so requesting it from the County
Clerk.

8.6 A copy of the agenda shall also be mailed to all Town Clerks, Village Clerks and City Clerks.

8.7 All items not appearing on the written Agenda or not delivered with the Agenda shall be out of
order and shall not be considered by the Board at the particular meeting.

8.8 Any item on the Agenda for consideration by the Board may be withdrawn at any time before
action is taken on it, but only by its sponsor or if sponsored by a committee, the Committee Chair or a
designated alternate in his/her absence.



8.9 In the event of withdrawal of any item as per 8.8, the Chair will announce the withdrawal and the
name of the sponsor or Committee Chair withdrawing it. Co-sponsored resolutions may only be withdrawn upon
the concurrence of all sponsors or Committee Chair.

8.10  Special orders of business may be scheduled by the County Board Chair for presentation to the
County Board on the 1st Tuesday of the months of January, March, May, July and September. Announcement
of these special meetings shall be made by the County Board Chair at the regularly scheduled County Board
Meetings held the 3rd Tuesdays of the months of December, February, April, June and August.

8.11  Any capital expenditure (improvement project) to be considered by the County Board at any
session other than at the budget session, the estimated cost of which is in excess of $50,000.00, shall require
presentation by the committee or the supervisor(s) sponsoring the resolution on behalf of said expenditure at a
prior meeting of the County Board before consideration of any appropriation resolution by the County Board.

9.0 DEFINITIONS

9.1 Agenda: The formal listing of Resolutions and Ordinances to be considered at a meeting of the
County Board.

9.2 Memorials: Something in a speech, ceremony or written document that commemorates
recognition of a person, place or occurrence.

9.3 Motion: The formal mode in which a member submits a proposed measure or resolution for the

consideration and action of the committee, commission or board.

9.4 Resolution: A written, proposed matter for the consideration and action of the County Board.
Upon approval, a resolution is a decision made by the County Board for a definite purpose.

9.5 Ordinance: A law set forth by a governmental authority, a municipal regulation.

9.6 Petition: A formal written document embodying a request of action to be taken by the
Winnebago County Board or one of its agencies or departments.

9.7 Policy: As used in these Rules, a policy is a general principle established by the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors to guide the management of Winnebago County government.

9.8 Meeting: A meeting is a single official gathering of the members of the Winnebago County
Board of Supervisors to transact business for a length of time during which there is no cessation of proceedings
and the members do not separate, unless for a recess, and may last from a few minutes to several hours.

9.9 Session: A session of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors is a meeting or series of
connected meetings devoted to a single order of business, program, agenda or announced purpose, in which,
when there is more than one meeting each succeeding meeting is scheduled with a view towards continuing
business at the point where it was left off at the previous meeting.

9.10  Special Orders of Business Meeting: A meeting other than the regular County Board monthly
meeting, Organizational Meeting or Budget Meeting only to be called by Chair.

9.1 Recess: A recess is a short intermission within a meeting which does not end the meeting or
destroy its continuity as a single gathering of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors and after which
proceedings are immediately resumed at the point where they were interrupted.

9.12  Veto: The refusal of assent by the County Executive to a resolution or ordinance passed by the
County Board.

9.13  Partial Veto: The refusal of assent by the County Executive to any portion of a resolution or
ordinance passed by the County Board which contains an appropriation.

9.14  Veto Over-Ride: A vote by two-thirds of the members elect (36) to pass a resolution or
ordinance, or part thereof, which has been vetoed or partially vetoed by the County Executive and has been
reconsidered by the County Board.

9.15 Remote Option: A remote option allows supervisors to attend meetings remotely. The remote
option requires the use of a device, application, or combination thereof. The remote option grants supervisor(s)
the ability to attend a board or committee meeting as a regular voting member. The remote option requires that
the public have equivalent access to remote board member(s), that they would have had if said board
member(s) was/were in physical attendance. The remote option must allow the chair to mute all remote
attendees and must allow supervisors the ability to identify themselves wanting to speak during times that they
have the privilege of speaking. Utilization of a remote option requires that the chair or vice-chair of the board or
committee be physically present at a location that would be open to the public.

10.0 PRIVILEGE OF SPEAKING

101 Every member previous to speaking shall be recognized by the Chair. When two or more
members desire to speak, the Chair shall designate the order of speaking.

10.2 No member shall speak more than twice on the same question without leave of the Board,
except to answer questions from the Chair or the Floor. The Chair must enforce this rule when a violation is
called to the attention of the Chair.

11.0 VOTING AND ROLL CALL



111 A vote on every question shall be taken by ayes, nays, or abstentions, and shall be recorded in
the records of the proceedings.

11.2 A unanimous oral vote shall be considered and recorded as an affirmative unanimous roll call
vote.

11.3  Atie vote on any question shall indicate that question is lost.

11.4  The Chair shall direct the County Clerk as to when a roll call vote is to be taken. After the Chair
so directs the Clerk and the Clerk begins the roll call, no more debate shall be allowed on the question.

11.5 A voting error shall be brought to the attention of the Chair before a vote is called on the next
item before the Board or no corrective action will be taken.

11.6  All votes cast shall be cast only if the Supervisor is present at his or her desk, unless the chair
of the board or committee has designated that the use of a remote session is permitted. If a remote option is
permitted, the supervisor(s) attending remotely must have a camera and microphone on and must be in the
visible range of the camera and auditory range of the microphone.

120 MOTIONS

121 When a motion is under consideration, no other motion shall be entertained except:
To adjourn.

To lie on the table.

For the previous question.

To postpone to a day certain.

To commit to a committee.

To amend or to substitute.

. To postpone indefinitely.

These motions shall take precedence in the order in which they stand in this section.

12.2 A motion to adjourn, to lay on the table, and for the previous question shall be decided without
debate.

12.3 A motion to postpone indefinitely or to a day certain or commit shall not again be entertained on
the same day or in the same stage of the proposition.

12.4 A substitute shall be open to amendment the same as the original proposition.

12.5 If an amendment or substitute is lost, another substantially the same shall not be entertained.

12.6  The previous question (a motion to end debate) may be moved by any member present, or
attending via remote option, for passage.

12.7  When a motion or question has once been determined, any member with the prevailing side if
he or she was present and voted may move for reconsideration of the vote, but such motion shall be made and
acted upon at the same or next succeeding adjourned (business) meeting and shall not thereafter be made
except by unanimous vote.

12.8 A motion to reconsider a resolution which has been partially vetoed by the County Executive will
be in order at the same meeting during which the County Board acts on the County Executive's partial veto.

GMmMOOw>

13.0 SUSPENSION OF RULES
13.1  Any of the Rules may be suspended by two-thirds vote of the members present or attending
remotely, except Rules Number 3.8, 7.5, 11.0-11.5, 12.7, 13.1 which are not suspendable.

14.0 ROBERT'S RULES

141  The rules of parliamentary practice included in the latest edition of "Robert's Rules of Order" so
far as they remain in common use and are practicable and applicable and consistent herewith, shall govern the
Board.

15.0 PUBLICATION OF REPORTS
15.1 Reports presented to the Board shall be kept on file by the County Clerk for reference purposes
but not published in their entirety in the official proceedings unless so ordered by the Board by a majority vote.

16.0 QUORUM AND VOTE REQUIRED ON BUDGET TRANSFERS

16.1  Wisconsin Statutes, Sec. 59.02(3), gives the general rule requiring a majority of supervisors to
be present in order to have a quorum for the transaction of business.

16.2  Under Wisconsin Statutes, Sec. 59.02(3), all questions before the Board are determined by a
majority of the supervisors present unless otherwise provided.

16.3  Wisconsin Statutes, Sec. 65.90(5), has some additional requirements for changes in the budget
after it has once been adopted. Changes in the amounts appropriated and changes in the purposes for which
amounts are appropriated may not be made after adoption of the budget except by a two-thirds vote of the
membership of the Board.



16.4  There is an exception, however, within this Statute, to-wit: The County Board hereby authorizes
its standing Personnel & Finance Committee to transfer funds between items within a department or office if
these items are separately appropriated, and further authorizes the Personnel & Finance Committee to
supplement appropriations for a particular office, department or activity by a transfer from the Contingency
Fund. Additional funding for unbudgeted funding requests for emergency purposes only, shall be made from the
General Fund undesignated fund balance or in the case of a self-supporting proprietary fund, the funds would
come from their own fund balance.

16.5 Personnel & Finance Committee transfers from the Contingency Fund shall not exceed the
amount set up in the Contingency Fund as adopted in the annual budget, nor aggregate in the case of an
individual office, department or activity in excess of 10 per cent of the funds originally provided for such office,
department or activity in such annual budget. The publication provisions of Sec. 65.90 (5)(a) and (b), Wis.
Stats., shall apply to all committee transfers from the Contingency Fund.

17.0 TENTATIVE MEETING DATES
171 The tentative daily time schedule and calendar are as follows:

2022
January 4 Special Orders 6:00 P.M.
January 18 Business 6:00 P.M.
February 22 Business 6:00 P.M.
March 1 Special Orders 6:00 P.M.
March 15 Business 6:00 P.M.
April 19 Organizational Meeting 6:00 P.M.
April 26 Business 6:00 P.M.
May 3 Special Orders 6:00 P.M.
May 16 Tour 8:30 A.M.
May 17 Business 6:00 P.M.
June 21 Business 6:00 P.M.
July 19 Business 6:00 P.M.
August 16 Business 6:00 P.M.
September 6  Special Orders 6:00 P.M.
September 20 Business 6:00 P.M.
October 18 Business 6:00 P.M.
October 31 Budget 6:00 P.M.
November 1 Budget 8:30 A.M.
November 2 Budget 8:30 A.M.
November 3 Budget 8:30 A.M.
November 15 Business 6:00 P.M.
December 19  Christmas Party 6:00 P.M.
December 20 Business 6:00 P.M.

18.0 GENERAL DUTIES OF THE COUNTY BOARD

181 COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS, BOARDS

18.2  The County Board shall be the Board of Jurisdiction for all County Board standing committees.

18.3  Any decision of any Standing Committee may be appealed to the Board by any Supervisor at
any regular or special Board meeting.

18.4  Any County Board Member may attend, without voting privileges, any open or closed meeting of
any County Board Committee, Commission or Board.

18.5 The public may attend any open meetings of the County Board, and/or its Committees,
Commissions, or Boards.

18.6  No County Board member shall permanently chair more than one committee. This rule shall not

apply to the chair of the Legislative Committee.

19.0 ANNUAL TOUR

19.1 The County Board shall make an annual inspection of County owned properties and facilities
during the month of May.

19.2 The agenda for this tour shall be compiled by the County Board Chair.

20.0 PER DIEM, MILEAGE, EXPENSES



201 Each Board Member shall be responsible for compiling their own expense sheet for payment by
the County of per diem, mileage and other expenses.

20.2  Such expense sheets must be submitted to the County Board Chair or County Clerk's Office no
later than the First Monday of each month.

20.3 Any and all expenses and other items listed on a Supervisor's expense sheet shall be paid by
the County except those which are in excess of sums permitted by County Resolution or Ordinance, or State
Statute, in which case the legal limit shall be paid upon approval by the County Board Chair.

20.4 Pursuant to the County Ordinance, attendance at meetings, conferences or educational
seminars that were not identified specifically at the time the budget was adopted must first be approved by the
County Board Chair as a condition precedent to expense reimbursement.

20.5 No Supervisor shall submit for payment any item of expense or per diem which said Supervisor
has not actually made or earned.

20.6 Reimbursement for general items of expense and attendance at meetings shall be governed by
Section 1.12 and Section 3.05 of the Winnebago County Ordinance. (See attached Appendix A.)

20.7 Board members attending seminars or conventions shall submit a written report as to the
seminar or convention to the Board within 30 days following its conclusion.

20.8 All Board members shall be paid by electronic funds transfer unless the Board member provides
a signed affidavit to the County Clerk that he or she does not own or possess a bank account so as to allow
such electronic payment.

21.0 ACCESS
211 All County Board Members shall have reasonable access during normal business hours to
departments or offices of Winnebago County not prohibited by State Statutes or Federal Regulations.

22.0 COMMITTEE MEETINGS

221 All Committee, Board and Commission meetings shall be held in the County Courthouse or on
public property if possible. Meetings held on private property must be accessible to the public.

22.2 The County Clerk is to be notified of all meetings prior to the time of the meeting so that public
notice can be given by the County Clerk.

22.3  Public notice of all meetings shall be given as soon as the members of the Committee, Board or
Commission are notified of such meeting and not less than 24 hours before the meeting except as hereinafter
provided. Any meetings utilizing the use of a remote option will need to be indicated at this time.

22.4  In emergencies, when a meeting must be held with less than 24 hours notice, the County Clerk
shall notify the press as soon as possible.

22.5 Minutes of each meeting, as required by State Statutes, shall be filed with the County Clerk
within ten days of the meeting except for closed meetings.

22.6 Minutes of closed meetings shall be kept and shall be filed with the County Clerk when no
reason exists for such minutes to be kept private.

22.7 Minutes of each meeting shall be kept by the secretary of the committee, or other person so
designated by the committee chair and such minutes shall include the time the meeting started, the time the
meeting ended, and the time of permanent departure of any member of that body from the meeting.

22.8 Meetings shall be held at the call of the Committee, Commission or Board Chair, or at the call of
a majority of its members.

22,9 Officers shall be elected during the Organization meeting and shall serve a term corresponding
to the Supervisor's term except as otherwise provided in these rules.

2210 Any Committee, by majority vote, may elect new officers after one year or when a vacancy
exists for any officer's position in that Committee.

23.0 STANDING COMMITTEES
23.1  Standing Committees of the County Board and their membership shall be:

A. UW Education, Extension & Agriculture Committee
5 County Board Members

B. Aviation Committee
5 County Board Members

C. Facilities and Property Management Committee
5 County Board Members

D Planning & Zoning Committee

5 County Board Members
Judiciary and Public Safety Committee

5 County Board Members

F. Parks and Recreation Committee

5 County Board Members

m



G. Park View Health Center Committee
5 County Board Members
H. Personnel & Finance Committee
5 County Board Members
l. Highway Committee
5 County Board Members
J. Legislative Committee
15 County Board Members (County Board Chair, Board, Commission, & Committee
Chairs)
K. Land Conservation Committee
5 County Board Members and Two Citizens
L. Information Systems Committee
5 County Board Members and 1 Citizen Member
M—Emergency-Management Committee
_ 5 County Board-Members

24.0 GENERAL DUTIES OF STANDING COMMITTEES
241 UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN EDUCATION,
EXTENSION & AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE

This committee shall be composed of five County Board supervisors and shall act as the “Committee on
Agriculture and Extension Education” as referred to in Section 59.56 (3), Wis. Statutes. The Committee shall
review policy issues relating to the County University Extension Program, County Library Services, and the
Winnebago County Fair and shall revise and recommend appropriate policy goals and legislative actions to be
taken by the County Board.

At least two members of this Committee shall be members of the Land and Water Conservation
Committee. Two members of this committee shall function as Winnebago County members of the Board of
Trustees of the University of Wisconsin- Fox Valley Campus.

This Committee shall establish procedure and make recommendations to the County Board of
Supervisors as to the award of college scholarships from the College Scholarship Fund to students who are
residents of Winnebago County.

242 AVIATION COMMITTEE

This committee shall be composed of five County Board Supervisors. The committee shall review policy
issues relating to Wittman Regional Airport and other aviation matters of concern to Winnebago County and
advise and recommend appropriate policy goals and legislative action to be taken by the County Board.

24.3 FACILITIES AND PROPERTY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

This committee shall be composed of five County Board Supervisors. The committee shall review policy
issues related to Winnebago County buildings, grounds, office equipment, furniture and fixtures in all county-
owned or leased facilities; long-range development plans for buildings and office space; review policy goals
relating to the Purchasing Department and Facilities and Property Management Department; and recommend
appropriate goals and legislative action to be taken by the County Board.

24.4 COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE

This committee shall be composed of five County Board Supervisors and shall be the "county zoning
agency" as referred to in Sec. 59.97 (2)(a)1, Wis. Stats. Committee members shall include at least one, but not
more than two, County Board Supervisors from an incorporated area. All members shall be appointed by the
County Board.

As provided in Sec. 59.95 (2)(bm), the county zoning agency shall be a policy-making body determining
the broad outlines and principles governing the administrative powers and duties specified in Sec. 59.97, Wis.
Stats. and shall be a quasi-judicial body with decision-making power including, but not limited to conditional use,
planned unit development and rezoning.

In addition, the committee responsibilities shall be as follows:

1. Responsibility for all matters of procedure relating to the Winnebago County Zoning Ordinance

(this would include basic zoning provisions, floodplain/shoreland provisions and airport zoning
provisions), except those designated to Board of Adjustment's jurisdiction.

2. Creation and maintenance of the County development plan.

3. Committee of Jurisdiction for the County Planning Department.

The Committee shall review policy issues relating to the County Zoning Department and County
Planning Department and advise and recommend appropriate policy goals and legislative action to be taken by
the County Board.

245 LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE

The Committee shall be composed of the chair, or the vice chair in the absence of the chair, of the
following committees and boards as well as the County Board Chairman:



The committees listed in Sections 23.1 through 24.4 and 24.6 through 24.12 of these Rules; the Human
Services Board; the Board of Health; the Industrial Development Board; the Solid Waste Management Board, and
the Veterans Service Commission. The Legislative Committee shall review proposed federal and state legislation
and administrative regulations impacting upon the County and shall provide and inform area legislators and
Wisconsin Legislative Committees of the recommendations of the County Board. The Committee shall report its
actions to the County Board as well as any pertinent information relating to legislation.

24.6 JUDICIARY & PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE

This committee shall be composed of five County Board supervisors. The committee shall review policy
issues and advise and recommend appropriate policy goals and legislative action to be taken by the County
Board relating to the following departments or activities:

Clerk of Courts, Sheriff, District Attorney, Coroner, Corporation Counsel, Family Court Commissioner,
Veterans Services, Register of Deeds, County Clerk, Court Commissioner, Law Library, Emergency
Management and Child Support Agency.

In addition, the duties and responsibilities of this committee shall be:

1. Submit recommendations for County Board rules to be considered at the County Board
organization meeting or at other County Board meetings.
2. Submit recommendations for apportionment of supervisory districts in Winnebago County.

This committee shall serve as the County Emergency Management Committee as referred to in Sec.
323.14(1)(a)(3), Wis. Stats.

24,7 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

The Parks Committee shall consist of five members. The County Board, through its Committee on
Committees in accordance with Rule 3.4, shall appoint the standing committee.

It shall be responsible for obtaining maintenance, operation and development of all Winnebago County
parks and recreation areas, including boat landings, recreational travel areas, associated programs and wildlife
preservation areas.

It shall recommend to the County Board from time to time for its action, the necessary rules and
regulations for all Winnebago County owned recreational areas.

248 PARK VIEW HEALTH CENTER COMMITTEE

The Park View Health Center Committee shall be composed of five members of the Winnebago County
Board appointed by the Chair of the County Board. This committee shall be a policy-making body determining
the broad outlines and principles governing the administration of nursing home services provided at the Park
View Health Center. This committee shall review policy issues relating to the Park View Health Center and
advise and recommend appropriate policy goals and legislative action to be taken by the County Board.

249 PERSONNEL & FINANCE COMMITTEE

This committee shall be composed of five County Board supervisors. The committee shall review policy
issues and advise and recommend appropriate policy goals and legislative action to be taken by the County
Board relating to the following departments: County Treasurer, Finance Department, Personnel Department,
General Services and Microfilm Department.

The duties and responsibilities of this committee shall be:

1. Receive all personnel requests from Committees and Boards of Jurisdiction for study and
recommendation.
2. Review proposed personnel policies and amendments as submitted by the Personnel Director

and County Executive and submit recommendations to the County Board for consideration and
legislative action.

3. Review personnel actions in all county departments as reported by the Personnel Director.

4. Recommend to the County Board, prior to the earliest time for filing nomination papers, a salary
schedule for elected officials, appointed officials and other employees of Winnebago County
unless otherwise determined by agreement or law.

5. Authorize budgetary alterations as permitted in Sec. 65.90(5), Wis. Stats. in either of the
following situations:

A. A transfer of funds between budgeted items of an individual County Department if such
budgeted items have been separately appropriated, and

B. Supplementation of appropriations for a particular office or department by transfer from
the Contingency Fund. The limitation on the dollar amount set aside in the budgetary
alteration shall be the amount set aside in the Contingency Fund or the sum of
$15,000.00, whichever is the lesser sum, and

C. Notwithstanding subsection (b), above, to accept gifts from the Oshkosh Area
Community Foundation’s Park View Health Center Pass-Through Fund into the
Contingency Fund and to appropriate monies received from said gifts to the new Park
View Health Center construction project for additions, enhancements, landscaping or
furnishings in relationship to said project, provided that the total amount of said



appropriation does not exceed 10% of the total amount of funds budgeted for said
project for that budgetary year.

This committee may refuse to authorize a budgetary alteration in whole or in part or may grant any such

alteration conditionally as it deems appropriate.

6. Review all financial reports submitted to the County Board by the County Executive, by County
officials and by auditors retained by the County. (The County Executive is charged with the
responsibility to examine, settle and allow all general accounts against the County and to have
issued County orders therefor.)

7. Advise the County Finance Director and County Executive in the matter of investment of county
funds and report to the County Board from time to time regarding county finances.

8. Examine all claims filed against the County for illegal taxes of any kind and shall make a report
and recommend to the County Board on all matters pertaining to illegal taxes.

9. Perform such responsibilities as are indicated in Sec. 3.03 of the General Code of County
Ordinances concerning properties taken by the county on tax deeds.

10. Advise with the County Insurance Administrator and County Executive in the matter of

establishing appropriate insurance coverages for Winnebago County.

11. Review all claims filed against Winnebago County pursuant to Secs. 59.76 and Sec. 893.80,
Wis. Stats. and submit its recommendation to the County Board for consideration and legislative
action. Submit an annual report on the disposition of all claims.

12. Review and adopt affirmative action plans submitted by the Affirmative Action Committee.

13. Study, recommend and forward all grant applications to County Board.

2410 HIGHWAY COMMITTEE

This committee shall be composed of five County Board supervisors.

As provided in Sec. 83.015(2)(b), Wis. Stats., this committee shall be a policy-making body determining
the broad outlines and principles governing administration of County Highway programs.

The committee shall review policy issues relating to the Winnebago County Highway Department and
other highway matters of concern to Winnebago County and advise and recommend appropriate policy goals
and legislative action to be taken by the County Board.

2411 LAND CONSERVATION COMMITTEE

The committee shall be composed of seven (7) members appointed by the County Board pursuant to
Sec. 92.06(1)(b), Wis. Stats., as follows:

Two persons shall be members of the University of Wisconsin Education, Extension & Agriculture
Committee; one person who is chair of the Winnebago County USDA Agricultural Stabilization and Conservation
Committee or such other committee member designated by said chair; and at least one citizen member. The
terms of the members of this committee who are not members of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors
shall expire on June 30 of all even numbered years.

The primary duties and responsibilities of such committee shall be as follows:

1. It shall be the committee of jurisdiction for the Land and Water Conservation Department.

2. It shall develop and adopt standards and specifications for management practices to control
erosion, sedimentation and nonpoint source water pollution throughout the county.

3. It shall distribute and allocate federal, state and county funds made available to the committee

for cost sharing programs or other incentive programs for improvements and practices relating
to soil and water conservation on private or public lands.

4. It shall carry out prevention and control measures and works of improvement for flood
prevention and for conservation, development, utilization and control of water within the county.
These preventative and control measures and works of improvement may be carried out on
lands owned or controlled by that state or any of its agencies, with the cooperation of the
agency administering and having jurisdiction of the land, and on any other lands within the
county upon obtaining the consent of the landowner or the necessary rights or interests in the
land.

5. It shall prepare long-range plans which include inventories of natural resources in the county, a
description of present natural resource uses and a projection of future trends, an assessment of
resource conservation problems in relation to use practices and actions necessary to correct
those problems including specific goals and provisions for the development, management and
conservation of soil, water and related natural resources.

This committee shall be a policy-making body determining the broad outlines and principles governing

administration of Winnebago County soil and water conservation.

The committee shall review policy issues relating to the Winnebago County soil and water conservation
programs and advise and recommend appropriate policy goals and legislative action to be taken by the County
Board pursuant to Secs. 92.06 and 92.07, Wis. Stats.

2412 INFORMATION SYSTEMS COMMITTEE



The Committee shall be composed of five (5) County Board members and one citizen member. The
citizen member shall be appointed by the County Board Chairman subject to the approval of the County Board
of Supervisors. The term of the citizen member shall expire on June 30 of all even numbered years. The
primary duties of such Committee shall be to review all proposals and needs relating to Winnebago County's
present and future information systems needs and technologies related thereto. This shall be the committee of
jurisdiction for the Information Systems Department.

25.0 SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COUNTY BOARD

Wisconsin Statute 59.11(2) states: A special meeting of the board shall be held:

a) Upon a written request of a majority of the supervisors delivered to the clerk, specifying the time
and place of meeting. The time shall be not less than 48 hours from the delivery of the request.
Upon receiving the request the clerk shall immediately mail to each supervisor notice of the time
and place of the meeting. Any special meeting may be adjourned by a vote of a majority of all
the supervisors. The board by ordinance may establish a separate procedure for convening the
board in a "declared emergency" as defined by county ordinance.

b) For the purposes and in the manner prescribed in Sec. 31.06, with the right to adjourn the
special meeting from time to time by a vote of a majority of all the supervisors entitled to a seat.
The clerk shall mail written notice of the special meeting, specifying the time, place, and
purpose of the meeting, to each supervisor not less than 2 weeks before the day set for the
meeting.



—_

OOk, WDN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38

01-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 18.0 (General Duties of the County Board) of the Rules of
the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Sections 18.7
and 18.8

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 18.0 of
the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Sections 18.7, and 18.8 to read as follows:
“18.7 All Committees, Boards, and Commissions will meet no earlier than 3:00 p.m. on any given day unless
the committee agrees unanimously to a different time.”

"18.8 The county executive, pursuant to Wis. Stat. 59.17(2)(c) shall appoint the members of all boards and
commissions where appointments are required and where the statutes provide where the appointments are
made by county board or the chairperson of the county board. All appointments to boards and commissions

by the county executive are subject to confirmation by the county board.”

Respectfully submitted by:
MIKE NORTON, DISTRICT 20

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 01-042022 Page 1



—_

arwODN

0 N O

11
12
13
14
15
16

02-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 22.0 (Committee Meetings) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors by adding Section 22.18

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 22.0 of
the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Section 22.18 to read as follows:
“22.18 All meetings shall be Zoomed or digitally broadcasted and recorded. Recordings will be made

available until the end of the current term.”

Respectfully submitted by:
MIKE NORTON, DISTRICT 20

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 02-042022 Page 1



abhwN -

0 N O

11
12
13
14

15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

34
35
36
37

38
39
40
41

03-042022

RESOLUTION: Limit Consecutive Terms for the Winnebago County Board Supervisors
to Serve on Winnebago County Committees

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

WHEREAS, it is a pleasure, honor and a privilege to represent County government for all of the residents of
Winnebago County; and

WHEREAS, county government stresses democracy and representation and strives for fair representation in
all county-related issues; and

WHEREAS, Winnebago County takes pride in the multitude of districts it serves; and

WHEREAS, every member should have a chance to serve as a Supervisor on a committee; and

WHEREAS, incumbents statistically remain on the same committees longer than new members; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest for our constituents as well as Supervisors, to work on a rotation of

issues instead of staying on the same committee and working on the same issues.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors all Supervisors,
whether appointed or elected, shall be limited to four full terms serving on a committee starting April 19t, 2022. A
term is defined by the term of office of a Winnebago County Board Supervisor, which is typically two years.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Committee on Committees must adhere to this Resolution when assigning
Supervisors to committees at every organizational meeting.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that if it is discovered that a
Supervisor has been serving on a committee longer than four full terms, the County Board Chair will automatically
appoint and/or replace that Supervisor to a new committee, to be ratified by the Winnebago County Board of

Supervisors by a majority vote at the next business meeting.

Respectfully submitted by:
BRIAN DEFFERDING, DISTRICT 6
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Approved by the Winnebago County Executive this day of , 2022.

Jonathan D. Doemel
Winnebago County Executive

Resolution Number: 03-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

04-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 1.1 (Time and Meeting Place) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 1.1 of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “The meetings of the County Board shall be
held in the Board of Supervisors' Room, or other suitable location, at 6:00 p.m. on the third Tuesday of the month.
When an election falls on the third Tuesday of the month, the County Board meeting shall be held on the fourth

Tuesday of the month. This Rule may be waived by the County Board Chairperson as a result of a local, state, or

national declared emergency.”

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 04-042022 Page 1



—_

OO WNDN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

05-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 2.0 (Orientation Meeting) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors by adding Section 2.6

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 2.0 of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to add Section 2.6 to read as follows: “For mid-term
appointments to the county board, the Chair of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors will organize a
similar meeting with the County Clerk, Corporation Counsel, Personnel Director, and chair of the Judiciary &
Public Safety Committee as outlined in 2.2; 2.3; 2.4; and 2.5. The Chair of the Winnebago County Board of
Supervisors will also ensure that any mid-term appointment receives priority placement on a committee

assignment.”

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 05-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

30
31
32
33
34
35

36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45

06-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 6.1 (Order of Business) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 6.1 of the

Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows:

"6.1 The Order of Business shall be as follows:

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

C. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

D. Prayer

E. Approval and correction of minutes of the previous meeting

F. Communications, Petitions, Memorials, Accounts, Etc. - Commendations must be read
Consecutively- with Maximum of 3 per meeting

G. Reports of Committees, Commissions and Boards

H. Adopt Written Agenda

I.  Public Comments

J. Report of the County Executive (optional)

K. Confirmation of County Executive and County Board Chair appointments

L. County Board Chair's Report

M. Presentation of Resolutions and Ordinances previously tabled or laid over to a day certain, and
disposition of same

N. Presentation of new Resolutions and Ordinances and disposition of same

O. Consideration of miscellaneous business

P. Adjournment

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 06-042022

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

07-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 6.2 (Order of Business) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 6.2 of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “The Roll Call shall be made by use of the

voting machine, or in the event of malfunction or remote meeting, by roll call of the County Clerk."

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 07-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

08-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 6.3 (Order of Business) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 6.3 of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “Monthly Reports of Committees,
Commissions, and Boards of the County Board may be made in writing, said reports to be included in the agenda
packet mailed, or otherwise delivered, to each Board Member within 5 business days following the meeting or 7

business days prior to a County Board of Supervisors meeting"

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:
Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 08-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38

09-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 6.5 (Order of Business) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 6.5 of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “Public comments will be heard by the
Board on any matter over which this body has jurisdiction, including, but not restricted to, those Resolutions and
Ordinances on the adopted agenda for that meeting. If a member of the public raises a subject that does not appear
on the meeting agenda, however, no substantive discussion of that subject may take place by the Board, and any
extensive deliberation regarding that subject may be deferred to a later meeting so that more specific notice may be
given by placing the subject on the agenda. In addition, the Board may not take any formal action on a subject raised

in the public comment period, unless that subject is also identified in the meeting agenda.

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 09-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

10-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 7.1 (Handling of Resolutions and Ordinances) of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 7.1 of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “Every written resolution shall be prepared
in block form and shall be as concise as possible and shall have attached to it the name of the Committee,
Commission or Board and/or the names of the Supervisor(s) introducing it. All resolutions or ordinances to be
considered by the County Board shall be prepared and presented with a brief background statement,
rationale of why the board should consider action, financial and/or resources impact and with at least one

Supervisor sponsor.”

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 10-042022
Page 1



—_

NOoO O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

11-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 7.0 (Handling of Resolutions and Ordinances) of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Section
7.3 and Changing Section Numbers thereafter (Formerly 7.3, 7.4, 7.5, 7.6
and 7.7) to Correctly Correspond with the New Numbering

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 7.3, 7.4,
7.5, 7.6, and 7.7 of the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows:

“7.3 The department head (or proxy) or County Executive (or proxy) may be allowed, if recognized by
the Chair, to introduce the background, rationale, implications, or address clarifications of a resolution or
ordinance as long as it is relevant to the discussion.”

"7.4 All items to be acted upon by the Board which are included on the adopted agenda may be referred to by the
titte and number and need not be read by the Clerk unless requested by a Supervisor."

"7.5 Every motion or amendment shall be reduced to writing if requested by a Supervisor."

"7.6 Every resolution having monetary implications shall have a fiscal note attached or included, and, if applicable,
shall contain a cost/benefit analysis."

"7.7 Any Committee of Jurisdiction may submit to the County Board a request which has been rejected by Personnel
and Finance Committee. However, this request resolution must have a two-thirds affirmative vote of the County
Board membership for adoption except at the County Board Annual Budget Session."

"7.8 Any resolution that is presented for the purpose of expressing support, opposition, or the desire for initiation of

any state or federal legislation shall require a three-fourths vote of those members present for passage."

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 11-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

12-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 8.3 (Written Agenda) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 8.3 of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “This Agenda, along with appropriate
attachments, shall be sent or made available, electronically posted and accessible, emailed or otherwise
deposited for delivery at least seven (7) days before the Board meeting and must provide the supervisors with all

necessary access information to attend remotely if the remote option is invoked for said meeting."

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:
Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 12-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

13-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 8.4 (Written Agenda) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 8.4 of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “After the Agenda has been sent or
posted, an item may be added and an Amended Agenda sent out only if there would be a negative monetary impact
to the County if it waited until the next meeting of the County Board. If waiting until the next County Board meeting

would not negatively impact the County, the item must wait until the next meeting."

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:
Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 13-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

14-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 8.6 (Written Agenda) of the Rules of the Winnebago

County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 8.6 of the

Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “A copy of the agenda shall also be sent or

made available to all Town Clerks, Village Clerks and City Clerks."

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 14-042022

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Page 1



15-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 10.2 (Privilege of Speaking) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 10.2 of

the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “p

Board recognizes the fundamental right of each of its members to be heard on every debatable issue. Any

member may to speak to the same question if such member has not already addressed the issue for more
than five (5) minutes or has been recognized to speak two (2) times on the issue. The Chair must enforce this

rule when a violation is called to the attention of the Chair through a point of order motion."

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 15-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

16-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 13.1 (Suspension of Rules) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 13.1 of
the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “Any of the Rules may be suspended by
two-thirds vote of the members present or attending remotely, except Rules Number 3.8, 7.5, 10.2, 11.0-11.5, 12.7,

13.1 which are not suspendable."

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 16-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

17-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 15.0 (Publication of Reports) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 15.0 of
the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “Reports presented to the Board shall
be kept on file, paper copy or in an electronic format, by the County Clerk for reference purposes but not

published in their entirety in the official proceedings unless so ordered by the Board by a majority vote."

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 17-042022 Page 1



—_

OO WNDN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

18-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 18.6 (General Duties of the County Board) of the Rules of
the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 18.6 of
the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “Beginning April 19, 2022 no County
Board member shall permanently sit on more than four County Board Committees, Commissions, or Boards.
This rule shall not apply to Legislative Committee, Committee on Committees, or Board of Health"

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 18-042022 Page 1



—_

NoOo ok WIN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

19-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 18 (General Duties of the County Board) of the Rules of
the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Sections 18.9
and 18.10

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 18 of the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Sections 18.9 and 18.10 to read as follows:
"18.9 Beginning April 19, 2022 no County Board member shall sit on a Committee, Commission, or Board for
more than eight (8) consecutive years."
"18.10 The County Board shall receive an annual report in the third quarter of every year from every
Committee, Commission, and Board including, but not limited to key objectives, key accomplishments, key

activities, and budget spending.”

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 19-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

20-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 19.1 (Annual Tour) of the Rules of the Winnebago County
Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 19.1 of
the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “The County Board may make an

annual inspection of County owned properties and facilities during the month of May."

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 20-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

21-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 19.0 (Annual Tour) of the Rules of the Winnebago County
Board of Supervisors by adding Section 19.3

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 19.0 of
the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Section 19.3 to read as follows: “A County

Board Supervisor may be able to get a tour of a county-owned facility with an arranged appointment.”

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 21-042022 Page 1



—_

Nooah~h WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

22-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 20.0 (Per Diem, Mileage, Expenses) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by Adding Sections 20.9 and
20.10

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 20.0 of
the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Sections 20.9 and 20.10 to read as follows:
“20.9 No committee member shall be reimbursed for two meetings when sitting in a single meeting session
unless it is a committee which has a public hearing.

"20.10 The Finance Director, as allowed by law, shall provide a report to the County Board bi-annually on per

diem, mileage, and other expenses."

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 22-042022 Page 1



—_

OO WNDN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

23-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 21.0 (Access) of the Rules of the Winnebago County
Board of Supervisors by adding Section 21.2

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 21.0 of
the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors by adding Section 21.2 to read as follows: “All County
Board Members shall have reasonable access to county employee directories not prohibited by State

Statutes or Federal Regulations.”

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 23-042022 Page 1



—_

O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

24-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 22.1 (Committee Meetings) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 22.1 of
the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows: “All Committee, Board and Commission
meetings shall be held on the County property or on public property if possible. Meetings held on private property

must be accessible to the public."

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 24-042022 Page 1



—_

NOoO O WN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

25-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 22.0 (Committee Meetings) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors by adding a New Section 22.2 and
Changing Section Numbers thereafter (Formerly 22.2, 22.3, and 22.4) to
Correctly Correspond with the New Numbering

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 22.2, 22.3

and 22.4 of the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows:
“22.2 Standing Committees shall occur on Mondays, Tuesdays, Wednesdays or Thursdays, and said
Standing Committee meetings shall commence between the hours of 3:00 pm and 8:00 pm unless the
majority of the committee cannot meet during this time. Meetings can be held outside these time periods
provided that said meetings do not exceed more than half of total meetings scheduled in a quarter.”
"22.3 The County Clerk is to be notified of all meetings prior to the time of the meeting so that public notice can be
given by the County Clerk."
"22.4 Public notice of all meetings shall be given as soon as the members of the Committee, Board or Commission
are notified of such meeting and not less than 24 hours before the meeting except as hereinafter provided. Any
meetings utilizing the use of a remote option will need to be indicated at this time."
"22.5 In emergencies, when a meeting must be held with less than 24 hours' notice, the County Clerk shall notify the
press as soon as possible."

Respectfully submitted by:

BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 25-042022 Page 1



—_

NOoO o b WDN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40

26-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 22.0 (Committee Meetings) of the Rules of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors by adding New Sections 22.6, 22.7, and
22.8 and Changing Section Numbers thereafter (Formerly 22.5, 22.6, 22.7,
22.8, 22.9, and 22.10) to Correctly Correspond with the New Numbering

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 22.6,
22.7, 22.8 of the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows:
" 22.6 Committee, commissions, and board meetings open to the public shall be held at times to allow for
and encourage public participation namely after 5:00 p.m. if possible.”
"22.7 A permanent video and/or audio recording of each committee, commission, or board meeting, unless
prohibited by state statute or federal regulation, shall be made and filed with the County Clerk within five
business days of the meeting except for closed meetings. Non-compliance shall result in suspension of the
committee, commission, or board meeting unless prohibited by law."
"22.8 In furtherance of the declaration of the open meetings policy of Wis. Stat. §19.81 which provides that
the public is entitled to the fullest and most complete information regarding the affairs of government as is
compatible with the conduct of governmental business; and whenever the Board or its Committees are
meeting in open session, such body shall make a reasonable effort to accommodate any person desiring to
record, film, or photograph the meeting as provided by Wis. Stat. §19.90. Wis. Stat. §19.90 does not permit
recording, filming, or photographing such a meeting in a manner that interferes with the conduct of the
meeting or the rights of the participants.

1. Sound and Light Criteria. Only audio and visual equipment which does not produce
distracting light or sound may be used to cover County proceedings. Artificial lighting
devices shall not be used in connection with equipment except in those circumstances
where such auxiliary devices are necessary and then only with the advance consent of
the Chairperson.

2, Location of Equipment and Personnel. Operators of camera equipment and news
reporters shall have free access to all areas open to the public. "

"22.9 Minutes of each meeting, as required by State Statutes, shall be filed with the County Clerk within ten days of
the meeting except for closed meetings. These minutes shall be posted online as soon as possible."

"22.10 Minutes of closed meetings shall be kept and shall be filed with the County Clerk when no reason exists for
such minutes to be kept private."

"22.11 Minutes of each meeting shall be kept by the secretary of the committee, or other person so designated by the
committee chair and such minutes shall include the time the meeting started, the time the meeting ended, and the
time of permanent departure of any member of that body from the meeting."

"22.12 Meetings shall be held at the call of the Committee, Commission or Board Chair, or at the call of a majority of
its members."

"22.13 Officers shall be elected during the Organization meeting and shall serve a term corresponding to the

Supervisor's term except as otherwise provided in these rules."

Resolution Number: 26-042022 Page 1



41

42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51

"22.14 Any Committee, by majority vote, may elect new officers after one year or when a vacancy exists for any

officer's position in that Committee."

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 26-042022

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Page 2



abhwN -

0 N O

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41

27-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 23.1 (Standing Committees) of the Rules of the
Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby amends Section 23.1 of
the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows:
“23.1 Each Committee shall carry out the duties specifically delegated to it by the County Board together
with such duties as may be authorized by Wisconsin Statutes. Notwithstanding the general duties delegated
to a Committee, any action otherwise undertaken by a Committee may be reversed or modified by action of
the full County Board. In carrying out Committee responsibilities, each Standing Committee may audit
claims and expenses for offices or Departments and shall review the annual budget requests from the
operations of such office or Department prior to submittal of the same to the Finance Commiittee.
Standing Committees of the County Board and their membership shall be:
A. UW Education, Extension & Agriculture Committee
5 County Board Members
B. Aviation Committee
5 County Board Members
C. Facilities and Property Management Committee
5 County Board Members
D. Planning and Zoning Committee
5 County Board Members
E. Judiciary and Public Safety Committee
5 County Board Members
F. Parks and Recreation Committee
5 County Board Members
G. Park View Health Center Committee
5 County Board Members
H. Personnel & Finance Committee
5 County Board Members
I.  Highway Committee
5 County Board Members
J. Legislative Committee
5 County Board Members
K. Land Conservation Committee
5 County Board Members
L. Information Systems Committee

5 County Board Members

Respectfully submitted by:

Resolution Number: 27-042022 Page 1



42
43
44
45
46

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 27-042022

BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Page 2



AWDN -

()]

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22
23
24

25
26
27
28
29

28-042022

RESOLUTION: Amend Section 25 (Special Meetings of the County Board) to the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby adds Section 25 to the

Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows:

"25.0 SPECIAL MEETING OF THE COUNTY BOARD
Wisconsin Statute 59.11(2) states: A special meeting of the board shall be held:

a) Upon a written request of a majority of the supervisors delivered to the clerk, specifying the time and
place of meeting. The time shall be not less than 48 hours from the delivery of the request. Upon
receiving the request, the clerk shall immediately e-mail to each supervisor notice of the time and place
of the meeting. Any special meeting may be adjourned by a vote of a majority of all the supervisors. The
board by ordinance may establish a separate procedure for convening the board in a "declared

emergency" as defined by county ordinance.

b) For the purposes and in the manner prescribed in Sec. 31.06, with the right to adjourn the special
meeting from time to time by a vote of a majority of all the supervisors entitled to a seat. The clerk shall
mail written notice of the special meeting, specifying the time, place, and purpose of the meeting, to each

supervisor not less than 2 weeks before the day set for the meeting.

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 28-042022 Page 1



()] A WODN -

0 ~NO

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

38
39
40
41
42

29-042022

RESOLUTION: Add Section 26 (Role of the County Board Supervisor) to the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby adds Section 26 to the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors to read as follows:

"26.0 ROLE OF THE COUNTY BOARD SUPERVISOR

26.1 Responsibilities of the County Board of Supervisors are defined by the
laws of the State of Wisconsin and the Rules of Order of the Winnebago
County Board of Supervisors.

26.2 County Supervisors are expected to individually contribute to a
collaborative effort to set a vision and strategic mission goals and make
broad policy decisions that support the strategic mission to advance the
priorities of the county. Examples of such activities, include, but are not
limited to:

1. Participating in the process of debate and voting on proposed
ordinances, resolutions and motions in County Board and
Committee meetings;

2. Providing policy and direction to the management of the county
regarding delivery of county services while refraining from the
delivery, management or administration of daily operations of the
county;

3. Being responsive to the needs of their constituency through
effective communication;

4. Establishing priorities for the delivery of county services through
the annual budget and tax levy.

26.3 Service as a County Supervisor is an honor and a trust, which compels
the office holder to serve the public through use of his or her judgment for
the benefit of the public, and binds him or her to uphold the Constitution
of the United States, the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin, and to
carry out impartially the laws of the Nation, State and County.

Respectfully submitted by:
BRYAN STAFFORD, DISTRICT 10

Committee Vote:
Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Resolution Number: 29-042022 Page 1



[&)] A WOWDN -

0 N O

11
12

13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22

30-042022

RESOLUTION: Adopt the Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors

TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:
BE IT RESOLVED by the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors that it hereby adopts the
Rules of the Winnebago County Board of Supervisors.

Submitted by:
Tom Egan, District 33

Vote Required for Passage: Majority of Those Present

Approved by the Winnebago County Executive this day of , 2022.

Jonathan D. Doemel
Winnebago County Executive

Resolution Number: 30-042022 Page 1



	County Board Packet Organizational Meeting 4.19.2022
	Agenda - Winnebago County Board of Supervisors 4.19.2022
	01-042022 Amend Section 18.0 (18.7-18.8)
	02-042022 AMENDED SECTION 22.0 (22.18) (NORTON)
	03-042022 Term Limits (Defferding-Stafford)
	04-042022 AMENDED SECTION 1.1
	05-042022 AMENDED SECTION 2.6
	06-042022 AMENDED SECTION 6.1
	07-042022 AMENDED SECTION 6.2
	08-042022 AMENDED SECTION 6.3
	09-042022 AMENDED SECTION 6.5
	10-042022 AMENDED SECTION 7.1
	11-042022 AMENDED SECTION 7.3
	12-042022 AMENDED SECTION 8.3
	13-042022 AMENDED SECTION 8.4
	14-042022 AMENDED SECTION 8.6
	15-042022 AMENDED SECTION 10.2
	16-042022 AMENDED SECTION 13.1
	17-042022 AMENDED SECTION 15.0
	18-042022 AMENDED SECTION 18.6
	19-042022 AMENDED SECTION 18.0 (18.9-18.10)
	20-042022 AMENDED SECTION 19.1
	21-042022 AMENDED SECTION 19.0 by adding 19.3
	22-042022 AMENDED SECTION 20.9-20.10
	23-042022 AMENDED SECTION 21.0
	24-042022 AMENDED SECTION 22.1
	25-042022 AMENDED SECTION 22.0 (22.2-22.5)
	26-042022 AMENDED SECTION 22.6
	27-042022 AMENDED SECTION 23.1
	28-042022 Add SECTION 25
	29-042022 Add SECTION 26
	30-042022 Adoopt the Rules of WC Board of Supervisors
	2022-2024 County Board Rules

	Code of Ethics Handbook 2022
	Ethics Handbook Cover
	2022 Ethics Handbook


